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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Hongliang (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Zijiang (General manager)
Mr. Guo Xitian

Mr. Guo Yucheng

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Gao Baoyu
Mr. Leung Kam Wan
Mr. Liu Chenguang

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

Mr. Leung Kam Wan (Chairman)
Mr. Gao Baoyu
Mr. Liu Chenguang

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Liu Chenguang (Chairman)
(re-designated as Chairman on 1 January 2012)
Mr. Gao Baoyu
Mr. Leung Kam Wan
Mr. Liu Hongliang (resigned as Chairman and
re-designated as a member on 1 January 2012)

Nomination Committee

Mr. Liu Hongliang (Chairman)
Mr. Leung Kam Wan
Mr. Liu Chenguang

Safety and Environmental Protection Committee

Mr. Guo Yucheng (Chairman)
Mr. Gao Baoyu
Mr. Fu Anxu

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Lau Wai Chun

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
BDO Limited

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, Weifang Branch
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HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716 on the 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre 183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 2204A on the 22nd Floor
Bank of America Tower

12 Harcourt Road Central

Hong Kong

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN THE PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC OF CHINA (THE “PRC”)

Weifang High Tech Industry Development Zone
Weifang City

Shandong Province

The PRC

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.tdchem.com

STOCK CODE
The Stock Exchange: 609
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MEBERAFEMBEME Financial Highlights and Five Years Financial Summary

B 5E “ZETNF —ZEThFE —T-TF —T——F ZB-Z=F
Notes 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
¥E Results
(AARBFTHIR) (expressed in RMB’000)
= Turnover 725,199 598,947 881,775 972,163 1,003,895
EH Gross profit 99,123 97,272 223,768 219,761 261,603
ZN/NETE7 F SN Profit attributable to
JE 15 5 7 owners of the Company 24,925 42,044 129,226 132,360 159,182
BRERRF Basic earnings per share
(AR (in RMB)
(BE5 - K1) (as restated, note 1) 2 0.031 0.053 0.158 0.156 0.188
REFFBE - BIE Earnings before interest,
FrEREHERR taxation, depreciation
([REHAIS - B\ - and amortisation
WEREHEIBH]) ("EBITDA") 74,462 90,536 199,611 210,083 251,014
B AR R Financial Positions
( KAREFITIIR) (expressed in RMB’000)
BEE Total assets 3 640,725 638,082 739,287 858,251 960,610
BaE Total liabilities 291,794 250,134 211,772 228,580 192,819
BREFEE Net assets per share
(NRH) (in RMB)
(BE7 - M) (as restated, note 1) 4 0.436 0.485 0.626 0.744 0.907
Brigth = Financial Ratios
i B bL Current ratio 5 0.8 1.1 1.8 2.3 2.3
RE)LL & Quick ratio 6 0.6 0.9 1.4 1.8 1.9
BRELE Gearing ratio 7 36.8% 34.1% 7.0% 5.0% 3.1%
B 5 Notes:
1 ARAREER(TRH])BEERBREARAATN=ZZ 1 The number of ordinary shares of the Company (the "Shares") has been
**ﬁﬁﬁ 'T’* AEIT 2 RRBFRKGAIE 2% adjusted for the issue of bonus shares (1 for 1) approved pursuant to the
THRR (—x—) fEHAEE - annual general meeting of the Company held on 13 May 2011.
2 RAREBAEEEN - FARNE 2 Profit attributable to owners of the Company +
BT METHE - (BIRER Weighted average of issued Shares for the year. (The
737?‘ E*ETF?JD%?i’]Hx@%lE H Basic earnings calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
CMRBE_ZETNEF - or share = Weighted average number of 800,000,000, 800,000,000,
;';jli —E-TF . :i—— P 819,723,222, 846,229,704 and 846,878,000 Shares for
FRRER = FRZF——-F+=-RA=+—H the five years ended 31 December 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011
2| I RESFE 2 T3 8 Hm 8 E and 2012 respectively.)
5 5] %800,000,000H -
800,000,000/% * 819,723,222
% - 846,229,704% }2846,878,000
B o)
3 BEE = ERBEE + RBEE 3 Total assets = Non-current assets + Current assets
4 Hx ﬁ T ¢ KEEEHTERHE 4 Shareholders’ equity + Number of issued Shares at the year
c (RZEENF - —ZFZF A end. (As at 31 December 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and
5 CZEEF 2B ——FR Net assets _ 2012, the calculation of net assets per share is based on
SEREE - :?fiifiﬂiJr*EE : pershare ~ the number of issued Shares of 800,000,000,
o MOFEE T RIRIE D BITR D 800,000,000, 842,496,000, 846,878,000 and
800,000,000/% * 800,000,000 846,878,000 respectively.)
% - 842,496,0000% - 846,878,000
M5 }2846,878,0008% 5t % )
5 mEE = RBEE-RBAE 5 Current ratio = Current assets = Current liabilities
6 ML= = (RBEE-FE) -RPaE 6 Quick ratio = (Current assets - Inventories) + Current liabilities
7 FREERRTEReERRE 7 Gearing ratio = Net debts (Total borrowings net of bank and cash balances
BELE = EHRRITEREZBERRE) KR and pledged bank deposits) + Shareholders’ equity
R
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FIRIR
RAERRRECITEZERERLT (R
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T-RLEFEZFERS -

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”)
of directors (the “Directors”) of Tiande
Chemical Holdings Limited (the
“Company” and together with its
subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”),
| am pleased to present the annual
report for the year ended 31
December 2012.
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FRE#|SE Chairman’s Statement

RESULTS FOR THEYEAR

The Group continuously achieves persistent growth and recorded
satisfactory results during the year under review. The Group’s turnover
reached historical high to approximately RMB1,003.9 million and
increased by 3.3% year-on-year. The gross profit of the Group stood at
approximately RMB261.6 million, representing an increase of 19.0%
when compared with last year. The profit attributable to owners of the
Company also increased obviously to approximately RMB159.2 million,
representing an increase of 20.3% when compared with last year. The
overall increase in net profit were mainly attributed to (i) the degree of
decline in raw material costs was greater than the selling price of
products, especially in the second half year, thus increased the profit
margins; (ii) effective procurement strategies by sourcing materials at
lower price; (iii) well-established economies of production scale, advanced
production technologies and further enhancement of the synergies of
upward vertically integrated production helped to promote the efficient
productivity as a whole; and (iv) adoption of stringent cost control
measures and streamlining of operations allowed the Group to achieve
satisfactory results.

During the year under review, the escalation of the Eurozone crisis, a
decelerating US economy and the PRC government imposed tightening
monetary measures to curb inflation and the over-heating economy
caused the shrinkage of manufacturing business of various sectors in
the PRC. Consequently, the poor market sentiment negatively affected
both of the selling price and materials price. Against this background,
the Group’s sales performance was inevitably been affected. Nevertheless,
the Group’s turnover still recorded persistent growth by virtue of the
development of new products to boost turnover and enhancement of
production capacities continuously in prior years. Likewise, it could not
be more pleased that the profitability of all reportable segments recorded
continuous growth.
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RESULTS FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

During the year under review, the Group has made investments in
production advancement in order to improve workflow efficiency and
drive cost savings as well as capital injection in a joint venture company
(the "JV Company”). These accounted for the high capital investment
expenditure. However, the cash flow position remained healthy and the
gearing ratio achieved the historical low due to the solid results and
better management of working capital of the Group. As a result of various
improvement measures, the Group’s productions and operations efficient
as well as its business edge has been strengthened to sustain its future
business development. Notwithstanding, the Group will keep developing
new products to grasp the potential markets by capitalising its existing
business advantages to boost turnover and improve margins in the years
ahead. In line with the Group’s business development strategies, certain
new products have been developed during the year under review. The
preparation and construction works of production facilities for such newly
developed products have been commenced as at this report date, the
new products are expected to be launched in foreseeable future. The
primary goal of the Group is to achieve organic growth in its existing
business as well as innovative in developing new potential products to
enrich the Group’s business.

Besides, the Group has tapped into a new business with a strategic
business partner to set up the JV Company for developing a specialty
chemical for industrial use product (please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 3 July 2011 for details). The JV Company has
been duly established, as well as the design and layout related to the
production plant has also been completed during the year under review.
Afterward, it is essential to speed up the construction progress and
installation of production line for the JV Company, as well as
establishment of sales and procurement management system and other
operational controls. The Group will use its best endeavor to kick-start
the productions and operations of the JV Company within 2013.

One key subsidiary of the Group with advanced production technologies
and innovative production process applying for High and New Technology
Enterprise status (“HNTE"). The application is under examination by the
relevant authorities during the year under review. The Group will follow
up the application progress. If HNTE is awarded by the relevant PRC
authorities then this subsidiary will enjoy tax incentives such as lower
income tax rate.

8 R TR FBR 2 A TIANDE CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FRE#|SE Chairman’s Statement

PROSPECTS

By virtue of the various business improvement measures implemented
in prior years, such as productivity enhancement, advancement of
production process, streamlining the business operations to achieve cost
savings and a better margin and building a solid business platform, the
Group’s profit growth recognised over the past three financial years
demonstrated that a sustainable and stable profit and cash flow base
has now been established. These will be the essential components in
supporting the development strategies of the Group. Given these
backdrop, the Group is ready to capture new business development
opportunities and move ahead. Looking forward, as signs of easing
macroeconomic tightening measures, the selling price and materials costs
are expected to rebound gradually. The Group will endeavor to deliver
turnover growth. In addition, the Group will continuously uphold its
practice of pragmatic and meticulous management to maintain its
operations and productions efficiency and effectiveness with an aim to
maintain ongoing profitability of the Group.

On the other hand, the Group shall work hard to solve relevant issues
related to the start-up of the JV Company’s business. Based on current
work plan, JV Company is unlikely to deliver economic benefits in
forthcoming year. Besides, it is anticipated that the start-up costs and
pre-operating expenses in respect of the JV Company would be incurred
substantially in next financial year, which will be borne by the Group
according to its equity interest proportion.

As there is still economic uncertainty in Europe as well as north America
is suffering from a very slow rate of economic recovery, the Group still
tilts toward the PRC markets for its further business development. Despite
of the GDP growth of China is anticipated at a slower pace than the
past, the Group will continue to take all necessary measures to improve
cost control, productivity and operations efficiency to protect the profit
level of the Group in future. The Group believes that leveraging on its
solid business strategies, market leading position, sound and efficient
productivity and strong asset base backed by sound cash flow, all of
which will enable the Group to achieve sustainable business growth
and offer even better returns to shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) in future.

— T — —F %3 ANNUAL REPORT 2012 9
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DIVIDEND

As a result of the satisfactory performance of the Group during the year
under review, the Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
3.8 HK cents (2011: 3.0 HK cents) per Share, for the financial year
ended 31 December 2012. Subject to the approval at coming annual
general meeting of the Company, the final dividend will be paid to
Shareholders on 20 June 2013.

APPRECIATION

| would like to thank all who contributed to the Group that we are
proud of our accomplishments during the year under review, including
our Shareholders, customers and business partners for their unwavering
trust and support. | am also grateful to the Board and our employees for
their industrious work, commitment and contribution to the continuous
success of the Group.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Hongliang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2013
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

LIU Hongliang, aged 57, is an executive Director, the chairman of the
Board (the “Chairman”) and one of the founders of the Group.
Mr. Liu is responsible for the overall strategic development and policy of
the Group. He graduated from East China Petroleum Institute (now
known as China University of Petroleum) in 1982, majoring in basic
organic chemistry. Mr. Liu spent more than ten years from 1982 to 1993
in Weifang New Technology Research Centre. After that, Mr. Liu
established Weifang Tianhong Equity Investment Company Limited
("Weifang Tianhong”) (formerly known as Weifang Tianhong Corporate
Management and Consultancy Company Limited) with others in 1996.
Mr. Liu has around 30 years of experience in the chemical industry.

WANG Zijiang, aged 48, is an executive Director, the general manager
of the Company and one of the founders of the Group. Mr. Wang is
responsible for the management and supervision of the overall operation
of the Group. He graduated from Nanjing Chemical College (now known
as Nanjing University of Technology) in 1988, majoring in chemical
engineering. He spent three years since 1991 working in Weifang New
Technology Research Centre. After that, Mr. Wang established Weifang
Tianhong with others in 1996. Mr. Wang has over 20 years of experience
in the chemical industry.

GUO Xitian, aged 51, is an executive Director and deputy general
manager of the Company. Mr. Guo is responsible for the overall
production and technology development of the Group. He graduated
from East China Petroleum Institute (now known as China University of
Petroleum) in 1982, majoring in basic organic chemistry. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Guo had been working in Shandong Zibo Dongfeng
Chemical Factory. Mr. Guo joined the Group in March 1999. Mr. Guo
has around 30 years of experience in the chemical industry.

GUO Yucheng, aged 56, is an executive Director. Mr. Guo is responsible
for the overall safety and environmental protection of the Group. He
graduated from East China Petroleum Institute (now known as China
University of Petroleum) in 1982, majoring in basic organic chemistry.
Prior to joining the Group in 2000, Mr. Guo had been working for
Weifang Organic Chemicals Factory since 1982. He was accredited as a
senior engineer by The Jury of Senior Title of Chemical Technical Post,
Shandong Province in 1994. Mr. Guo joined the Group in December
2000. Mr. Guo has around 30 years of experience in the chemical industry.

— T — —F %3 ANNUAL REPORT 2012 I
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

GAO Baoyu, aged 51, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director since 4 October 2006. He was the tutor of the post-
graduate students studying for doctorate degrees, the professor of
environmental engineering and the dean of the school of environmental
science and engineering of Shandong University from January 2001 to
November 2012. He was recognised as one of the Middle-aged and
Young Expert with Outstanding Contributions in Shandong Province in
2007. He graduated from Tsinghua University in 1999 with a doctorate
degree in engineering majoring in environment engineering.

LEUNG Kam Wan, aged 47, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director since 1 March 2007. Mr. Leung graduated from
Hong Kong Baptist University and Hong Kong Polytechnic University with
a degree of Bachelor of Business Administration in Finance and a master
degree in corporate governance in 1992 and 2007 respectively. Mr. Leung
is an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, an associate of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and an associate of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. Mr. Leung has been a practicing certified public accountant
for over 10 years. He has extensive experience in financing, accounting
and auditing. Mr. Leung currently is the managing director of Leung
Kam Wan CPA Limited and a director of CCTH CPA Limited.

LIU Chenguang, aged 51, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director since 4 October 2006. Mr. Liu has obtained from East
China Petroleum Institute (now known as China University of Petroleum)
a bachelor degree in science majoring in petroleum refining in 1982
and a master degree in applied chemistry in 1985. He obtained his
doctorate degree in applied chemistry from China University of Petroleum
(Beijing) in 1991. Mr. Liu has been an associate professor of China
University of Petroleum since 1992, then was promoted as a professor
in 1994 and subsequently the tutor of the post-graduate students
studying for doctorate degrees in 1998. Mr. Liu is the dean and professor
of the college of chemical engineering of China University of Petroleum.
He is a member of China Petroleum Society, China Chemistry Society,
China Chemical Society, American Chemistry Society and director of
Shandong Chemistry and Chemical Society.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Turnover

The Group continuously enhanced the production capacity of products
with good market potential in prior years to seize market share and
boost the growth of turnover. However, the sales performance was
neutralized by the decline of selling price as a result of tightening
economic measures implemented by the PRC government to curb
inflation and the over-heating economy during the year under review.
The Group’s turnover increased slightly to approximately RMB1,003.9
million, representing an increase of 3.3% as compared with that of
approximately RMB972.2 million in 2011.

Gross profit

The gross profit of the Group has noticeably increased to approximately
RMB 261.6 million, representing an increase of 19.0% as compared
with approximately RMB219.8 million in 2011 while the gross profit
margin was also grew by 3.5% to 26.1% when compared with 22.6%
in 2011. The increase is mainly due to (i) the decrease of materials price;
(i) improvement in procurement process allowed sourcing materials at
lower price; and (iii) the enhanced productivity and streamlined
production processes helped to save costs further.

Operating income and expenses

The other income was mainly comprised (i) release of deferred income;
(ii) sundry income; (iii) rental income; (iv) interest income; and (v)
government grants during the year under review.

The selling expenses were slightly increased by RMB0.6 million to
approximately RMB22.2 million (2011: RMB21.6 million) during the year
under review. Such slight increase was principally as a result of the
increase in the transportation costs which was in line with the growth
of turnover of the Group, whereas the sales commission continuously
decreased as the proportion of direct sales to total sales further increased.
Sales commission was not required to pay for direct sales. The selling
expenses as a percentage of the Group’s turnover were fairly stable at
2.2% (2011: 2.2%).

As a result of the stringent costs control and streamlining of operations
implemented by the Group during the year under review, the
administrative expenses decreased by approximately RMB1.3 million from
approximately RMB35.1 million in 2011 to approximately RMB33.8
million in 2012. Such decrease was mainly due to the decrease of
exchange loss, repairs and maintenance, and bank charges.
Administrative expenses expressed as a percentage of the Group’s
turnover were 3.4% in 2012 (2011: 3.6%).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Finance costs

The finance costs mainly represented bank borrowings interest and
discounted bills interest, which was increased by approximately RMB2.1
million from approximately RMB6.6 million in 2011 to approximately
RMB8.7 million in 2012. The increase was mainly due to the increase in
bank borrowings interest rate during the year under review. The bank
borrowings of the Group were mainly used in financing the capital
expenditure and general working capital requirements of the Group.

Fair value loss on derivative financial instruments

On 30 June 2011, the Company entered into a joint venture agreement
(the "JV Agreement”) with Henkel Hong Kong Limited (“Henkel”) to
set up the JV Company for developing a specialty chemical for industrial
use product and the JV Agreement became effective from 23 February
2012. Under the JV Agreement, (i) the Company is granted with a call
option to require Henkel to sell or cause the sale of all of the shares of
the JV Company held by Henkel and/or its affiliates to the Company at
the call option price; and (ii) Henkel is granted with a put option to
require the Company to purchase or cause the purchase of all of the
shares of the JV Company held by Henkel and/or its affiliates at the put
option price. Such options can only be exercised during the option period
which set on a specified future dates (please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 3 July 2011 for details). Thus, the JV Agreement
deemed to contain embedded derivative which is required to be carried
at fair value. For the year ended 31 December 2012, the fair value loss
on the embedded derivative financial instruments was determined to
be approximately RMB7.0 million, based on the following significant
assumptions:

Valuation method: Binomial Lattice Model
Risk free rate: 2.32% p.a.

Details of the derivative financial instruments are set out in note 29 to
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Profit for the year

Given the aforesaid improvement measures, the profit of the Group for
the year has recorded an increase of approximately RMB26.8 million to
approximately RMB159.2 million, representing an increase of 20.3% as
compared with that of approximately RMB132.4 million in 2011.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Liquidity and financial resources

The Group's primary source of funding included the net cash inflow
generated from operating activities of approximately RMB218.6 million
(2011: RMB91.3 million); newly raised bank borrowings of approximately
RMB104.1 million (2011: RMB124.3 million); no proceed from the issuing
of new Shares (2011: RMB1.2 million); interest income of approximately
RMBO.5 million (2011: RMBO0.4 million); proceeds on disposal of property,
plant and equipment of approximately RMB0.06 million (2011: RMB0.07
million); and no proceed on the disposal of prepaid land lease payments
(2011: RMB26.8 million). With the financial resources obtained from
the Group's operations, the Group had spent approximately RMB133.3
million (2011: RMB75.0 million) in the acquisition of the property, plant
and equipment; investment in a jointly controlled entity approximately
RMB48.4 million (2011: Nil); borrowing repayments of approximately
RMB139.1 million (2011: RMB105.2 million); interest paid of
approximately RMB8.8 million (2011: RMB6.7 million) and dividend paid
of approximately RMB20.8 million (2011: RMB32.0 million) during the
year under review. As at 31 December 2012, the Group had pledged
bank deposit and bank and cash balances of approximately RMB50.0
million (2011: RMB77.3 million), of which 94.1% was held in RMB, 5.6%
was held in United States dollars and the remaining balance was held in
Hong Kong dollars and EUROs. During the year under review, the Group
did not use any financial instruments for any hedging purposes.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had recorded net current assets of
approximately RMB196.8 million (2011: RMB217.6 million), the current
ratio of the Group was approximately 2.3 times (2011: 2.3 times), bank
borrowings of approximately RMB74.0 million (2011: RMB109.0 million)
and the gearing ratio which is represented by the ratio of net debts
(total borrowings net of bank and cash balances and pledged bank
deposits) to total shareholders’ equity, was further decreased to
approximately 3.1% (2011: 5.0%)).

With the continuous positive cash inflow generated from its operations
and its existing cash resources and undrawn banking facilities obtained
from its banks, the Group has sufficient financial resources to meet its
commitments and working capital requirements. The Group will
continuously monitor its cash outflow closely and cautiously in the
coming years and dedicate to maintain a sound financial position and
improve the equity return to Shareholders.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2012, no bank deposits (2011: RMB13.4 million)
was pledged for bills and letter of credit facilities. Prepaid land lease
payments of the Group of approximately RMB30.3 million (2011:
RMB23.5 million) were pledged to secure the Group’s banking facilities
and borrowings.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Contingent liabilities
As at 31 December 2012, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.

Commitments

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had commitments which has been
contracted but not yet been provided for in the aggregate amount of
approximately RMB115.7 million (2011: RMB150.3 million), among of
that approximately RMB98.8 million (2011: RMB145.5 million) relating
to the commitment for the joint venture project and the rest for purchases
of property, plant and equipment as well as construction in progress,
while the capital commitment for authorised but not yet been contracted
for in the aggregate amount of approximately RMB50.2 million (2011:
RMB87.9 million) is relating to the purchases of property, plant and
equipment as well as construction in progress.

Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates

The Group’s operation is mainly in the PRC and its assets, liabilities,
revenues and transactions are mainly denominated in RMB, Hong Kong
dollars and United States dollars.

The Group’s foremost exposure to the foreign exchange fluctuations
was caused by the appreciation of RMB during the year under review.
Most of the Group’s income and expenses are denominated in RMB
except for export sales which were, in majority, denominated in United
States dollars. However, the Group has not experienced any material
difficulties or effects on its operations or liquidity as a result of the
fluctuations in currency exchange rates during the year under review.
Besides, the Group will consider cost-efficient hedging methods in future
foreign currency transactions as and when appropriate.

Employees and remuneration policy

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has 903 full-time employees (2011:
896) of whom 810 were production and warehouse employees, 17 were
sales and marketing employees, 17 were research and development
centre employees, and 59 were management and back-office supporting
employees. The slight increase in the number of employees was in line
with the expansion in business activities during the year under review.

For the year under review, the total staff costs incurred including directors’
remuneration increased to approximately RMB57.0 million (2011:
RMB50.7 million).

The Group has established its human resources policies and scheme with
a view to deploying the incentives and rewards of the remuneration
system which includes a wide range of training and personal development
programs to the employees. The remuneration package offered to the
staff was in line with the duties and the prevailing market terms. Staff
benefits, including medical coverage and provident funds, have also been
provided to the employees of the Group.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Employees and remuneration policy (Continued)

The employees would receive discretionary bonuses and monetary
rewards based on their ratings in annual performance appraisals of the
Group. The Group also offered rewards or other incentives to the
employees in order to motivate their personal growth and career
development, such as ongoing opportunities for training to enhance
their technical and products knowledge as well as their knowledge of
industry quality standards. All new employees of the Group are required
to attend an induction course and there are also various types of training
courses available to all the Group’s employees.

The Company has also adopted a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. During the year
under review, no share option of the Company has been granted.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, leverage on the new products continuously
launched in previous years that expanded market coverage of the
downstream industries and stimulated the growth of sales, the turnover
of the Group continuously delivered a positive growth even though the
overall selling prices have been decreased as compared with last year.
Turnover of the Group derived from domestic market continued to be
the key contribution, accounted for 78.4% of total turnover of the
Group, while turnover derived from overseas accounted for the balance
21.6%. Meanwhile, the Group improved productivity and operational
efficiency through optimised production processes, upgraded the
production facilities with advanced technology and enhanced economies
of scale to curb the rising of labour costs and overheads, as well as
improving the procurement processes to purchase materials at lower
price. The gross profit and gross margin of the Group have improved
impressively because of the above combined efforts. Along with effective
operating expense controls, the Group performed a better profit level
during the year under review.

In view of projected production capacities unable to satisfy robust market
demands in respect of products with good market potential, the Group
has devoted more efforts and resources in enhancement of its production
efficiencies and capacities since the prior financial year. The past
investments paid off in achieving cost savings and turnover growth to
the Group during the year under review. Besides, in order to meet the
future demand as business expanding and further promote the energy
conservation and emission reduction, the Group has implemented a
comprehensive plan to consolidate the existing production lines during
the year under review. This does not only help to enlarge the overall
production capacities and uplift the productivity but also facilitate energy
conversation in long term.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

As new product development is an essential strategy to sustain the
business development and growth of the Group, the Group was
consistently developing new products during the year under review and
the production lines for such new products will be constructed in next
financial year. Uninterrupted innovative development enabled the Group
to continue to raise its competitiveness, supplemented with ongoing
improvements in its productivity, it will shape the main driver of sustain
business growth of the Group.

Cyanoacetic acid and its ester products

Cyanoacetic acid and its ester products are still the main business segment
of the Group, which has performed a strong turnover growth during
the year under review as a result from the new products launched to
expand the market coverage and improved production capacities which
driven the growth of turnover. The turnover of such products category
was accounting for 78.5% (2011: 77.4%) of the Group’s total turnover.
The profit from this products category was obviously higher than the
previous financial year mainly because of enhanced economies of scales,
improved synergies of vertically integrated production and the optimised
production processes to trim the production costs effectively. Currently,
the buoyancy in demand of this products category provided a good
opportunity to the Group for its further development. The Group will
continue to enhance its competitive advantages of such products
category with a focus on the product innovation and development and
improvement of productivity to secure its leading position in the industry.
It is expected that the performance of this products category would at
the minimum be keep pace with market organic growth in future.

Sodium cyanide and its derivative products

Sodium cyanide and its derivative products are core products of the
Group, which have been differentiated from cyanoacetic acid and its
ester products category with the aim to closely monitor the market
development of this products category. A certain portion of outputs
from this products category has been consumed internally and the
remaining balance was sold externally. As the continuous growing
demands both internally and externally in recent years, the Group has
also developed certain downstream products to explore new markets
during the year under review as the Directors considered that there will
be good potential growth for this products category in future by
capitalising the existing competitive edge of the Group. The preparation
and construction works of new production lines are ongoing up to the
date of this report and it is anticipated that the new products will be
launched in financial year of 2014. The Group will closely monitor the
market development of this products category and make decisive
measures to grasp development opportunities in future.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Alcohol products

This products category is mainly for internal consumption so it is
important to maintain stable internal supply while seeking external sale.
During the year under review, the turnover declined was resulted from
limited market space. In light of an effective sales and marketing strategy
and improved procurement process, the profit of this products category
has been improved ultimately. The Group will maintain appropriated
production and operation for the development of such products category
in future.

Chloroacetic acid and its derivative products

In line with the Group’s expectation, chloroacetic acid and its derivative
products kept a rapid and healthy growth momentum through the
continuous expansion of production capacities to meet surging market
demands. Both the turnover and profit have achieved continuously
prominent growth during the year under review. The growth rate of the
profit margin was faster than the turnover, which implied that there is
still a room for the further growth of this product category in future.
Chloroacetic acid and its derivative products were the core materials for
cyanoacetic acid and its ester products and mainly for internal
consumption in the past. In order to cater for the buoyant external market
demands, the fourth phase production expansion of this products
category has been completed during the year under review. The
enhancement of productivity efficiency is not only allowed the Group to
take a bigger slice of market share and fulfill the promotion of recycling
economy production and utilisation of internal resources fully from
internal supply for further costs saving but also helps to strengthen the
competitiveness edge of the Group. The Group will focus on the
development of this products category and make further expansion of
the production capacity onwards as and when appropriate.

Fine petrochemical products

During the year under review, the fine petrochemical products still
delivered positive results was mainly due to the improved procurement
process that sourcing materials at lower price to reduce the production
costs. Given to the dwindling orders and shrinking margins limited the
further development of such products category, the outlook of this
products category is modest. The Group decided to reallocate the
production facilities of a profitless product to other potential products
during the year under review. The move allows the Group to fully utilise
its resources in promising areas. However, the Group will still keep
maintaining the development of profitable products within this products
category.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Joint venture

During the year under review, the JV Company has been duly established
and all the pre-operating activities have been kick-started on schedule
and progressing smoothly. Up to the date of this report, the JV Company
has accelerated the progress of the construction of production plant
and facilities. Barring any unforeseen circumstance, the Group expected
the construction works as well as the sales and distribution networks
would be in place within next financial year, the commercial productions
and operations would be commenced in foreseeable future. Hence, it is
anticipated that the Group would bear the substantial pre-operating
expenses of the JV Company in coming financial year in proportion to
the Group's equity interest.

Outlook

The macro-economic environment remains challenging. US apparently
are undergoing a slow but gradually recovery process. For the Eurozone,
financial turmoil is still affecting certain members of the European Union
and inflationary pressure in the PRC together with RMB appreciation
pressure etc., have negative impact on consumer demands. Despite of
these, the Group has well-positioned its business and right development
strategies, equipped with innovative products development,
strengthened productivity, efficient productions and operations. These
measures will facilitate the Group to seize new business opportunities
and achieve business growth.

Looking forward, it is essential for the Group to work even harder to
remain on a successful path. The Group will continuously to monitor its
operations and implement various measures to further rationalise and
reduce the cost base. The long term business strategy of the Group is to
leverage its core competitive advantages as an integrated fine chemical
company to grow the downstream chemicals businesses of the Group
by replicating the proven business model of the Group. In line with such
core competitive strategies of the Group, the Group will continue focus
on products development to exploit new markets for new streams of
revenue and further enhance the production capacities of good potential
products with improvement of existing technologies in energy-saving
production to maintain the Group’s leading position in the industry.

The Directors have confidence in the strengths and solid foundation of
the Group to capture the growth opportunities going forward. The
Directors also believe that the Group will be capable to maximize
Shareholder value in future.
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EE RS Directors’ Report

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal business
of the Group includes the research and development, manufacture and
sales of fine chemical products, which is broadly categorised into six
major product groups, namely the cyanoacetic acid and its ester products,
sodium cyanide and its derivative products, the alcohol products, the
chloroacetic acid and its derivative products, the fine petrochemical
products and other by-products.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 46 of this annual
report.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of 3.8 HKcents
(2011: 3.0 HKcents) per Share. The final dividend will be payable by the
Company on Thursday, 20 June 2013 to the Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Wednesday, 5
June 2013, which is subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the “2013 AGM").

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2013 AGM will be held on Friday, 24 May 2013. Shareholders should
refer to the details regarding the 2013 AGM in the circular of the
Company of 22 April 2013 and the notice of the 2013 AGM and the
form of proxy accompanying thereto.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of ascertaining the Shareholders who are entitled to
attend and vote at the 2013 AGM, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Wednesday, 22 May 2013 to Friday,
24 May 2013, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for the right to
attend and vote at the 2013 AGM, all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates should be lodged with the Company’s share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716 on the 17th Floor of
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 21 May 2013.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS (Continued)

For the purpose of ascertaining Shareholders who qualify for the
proposed final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2012,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
3 June 2013 to Wednesday, 5 June 2013, both days inclusive. In order
to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers accompanied by
the relevant share certificates should be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716 on the 17th Floor
of Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 31 May 2013.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year under review in the share capital
of the Company are set out in note 25 to the financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2012.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 4 of this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the
Group on page 52 of this annual report and note 26 to the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Under Chapter 22 of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium account of the Company can be used for paying
distributions or dividends to Shareholders subject to the provisions of its
memorandum or articles of association and provided that immediately
following the distribution of dividend, the Company is able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. As at 31
December 2012, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to
Shareholders amounted in total to approximately RMB221.7 million
(2011: RMB246.4 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year under review, the Group spent approximately RMB133.3
million (2011: RMB75.0 million) on property, plant and equipment to
expand its production capabilities. Details of the movements in the
property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 14 to
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group's investment properties were revalued at the year end date.
The fair value increase on investment properties arising on revaluation
amounting to approximately RMBO0.6 million (2011: RMBO0.2 million) has
been credited to the consolidated income statement. Details of
movements in the investment properties of the Group are set out in
note 16 to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2012.
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DONATIONS

During the year under review, the Group made charitable and other
donations totaling approximately RMB0.002 million (2011: RMB0.07
million).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 17.1% (2011: 16.8%) of the Group’s total
turnover, whilst the turnover attributable to the Group’s largest customer
accounted for approximately 4.3% (2011: 4.8%) of the Group's total
turnover.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 35.0% (2011: 42.3%) of the Group’s total
purchases, whilst the purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier accounted for approximately 9.5% (2011: 13.6%) of the Group’s
total purchases.

At no time during the year under review did any Director, any associate
of a Director or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has an interest in
any of the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the financial year under review and up to the date
of this report are:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Liu Hongliang
Mr. Wang Zijiang

Mr. Guo Xitian

Mr. Guo Yucheng

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Gao Baoyu

Mr. Leung Kam Wan

Mr. Liu Chenguang

In accordance with articles 86 and 87 of the Company’s articles of
association (the “Articles of Association”), Mr. Wang Zijiang, Mr. Guo
Yucheng and Mr. Leung Kam Wan shall retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election as Directors at the 2013 AGM.

The independent non-executive Directors were appointed for an initial
term of not more than three years and will be renewable automatically
for successive term of three years until terminated by not less than one
month’s notice in writing served by either party on the other.

The executive Directors have entered into service contracts with the
Company for a term of 3 years and thereafter shall continue from year
to year until terminated by giving three months’ notice in writing thereof
by either party to the other.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
(Continued)

No Directors proposed for re-election at the 2013 AGM has an unexpired
service contract which is not determinable by the Company or any its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions”
set out in this report and note 32 to the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2012 on “Related Party Transactions”, no
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company and their associates in the shares
and/or underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO™)), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix
10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:

REGzEFR Long position in the Shares
FERGOEE

IR 10 R & HERITREEH
Number of BB 2 (%)
AT B EEER Shares held/ Approximate % in
EEnE Company/ interestin {7 the total issued
Name of Director name of associated corporation the Shares Capacity share capital
ZHREE HEEEBRQF P 584,000,000  REAE 69.0%

Mr. Liu Hongliang ~ Cheerhill Group Limited (Note 1) (Ff3E2)  Interest of controlled

(Note 2) corporation

B

1. 584,000,000 Hm hHEEERER AR ([F
) #FE  E2IMEBHTBRADRIEEHEEE
HEFThE  FHEBELAE  BIIZE - FE
RAEERBEZBLERREZHEE3IS.0%
26.0% ~ 11.5% ~ 11.5% ~ 6.5% % 6.5% °

2. HRFLEENREEHEE3S.0%ER R AER
XKt EE 1Pt 2 584,000,0008% B D B £ %5 -

Notes:

1. The 584,000,000 Shares were held by Cheerhill Group Limited
("Cheerhill”), the entire issued share capital of which is ultimately
beneficially owned as to 38.0% by Mr. Liu Hongliang, 26.0% by Mr. Wang
Zijiang, 11.5% by Mr. Guo Xitian, 11.5% by Ms. Zheng Hong, 6.5% by
Mr. Guo Yucheng and 6.5% by Mr. Fu Anxu.

2. Mr. Liu is deemed to be interested in 584,000,000 Shares referred to in
Note 1 above by virtue of his 38.0% interest in Cheerhill.

24 KiE{p T1EH& A PR A & TIANDE CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED



EERIZORABRESER ()

R EXFEEEN BE_E——_F+_A=+
—HIE REF  ARAEBTBRABRESFZ
B g2 AR AR R B AN 2 A Sk B (] AR B R B 2 AR
Betn - HHBERR D KBS 2 TR AR -

FBRR
BE-T——F+-A=+—Bi BEXXFAR
S LB IRDIE33616FE 2 EZRFAMA
R U TERREAGADARRADRADEITR
AN eh 5 AR R AR

g%ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ&/ﬁﬁ@&ﬁ¢%ﬁz
B

EE RS Directors’ Report

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (Continued)

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief executive of
the Company nor their associates had any interests or short positions in
any Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations as at 31 December 2012.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2012, the register of substantial Shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO shows
that the following Shareholder had notified the Company of their relevant
interests in the issued share capital of the Company:

Long position of substantial Shareholders in the Shares
and/or underlying Shares

FrEROEE
R EERESARE HERTRAEH
Number of Shares A E D (%)

held/interest in

Approximate % in

BRAR the Shares and 5% the total issued
Name of Shareholders aggregated interest Capacity share capital
El& () 584,000,000 EmEE A 69.0%
Cheerhill (Note) Beneficiary owner

3T - Note:

584,000,000/%f& 5 ThmEEEE - H2IEBITRA
DRIRBIE=AL - TFIEE  BHEMEE - BiTL
T HEREERBLBEERKRESHEE38.0%
26.0% ~ 11.5% ~ 11.5% * 6.5% % 6.5% °

B EXHREEIN  BRE-T——-F+-A=+
— Bt ARRRIWEETR A TS AN EHE
BT - EETABREESMPEEMAEME
RRBZERIAR » HFEARABRIBEZSFR
HEIEDIE336161FE 2 B ol P il sk 2 B S sl
2o

BERDIAEE R

ARE - HERAR - SEEAHB AR &R R
B B 2~ AL AR A () R AR R ARTF PRI BT SZAE ) %2
BE - BEERAREEAR R ST A EMEAE
BzBROREBES (BEER) MEE

The 584,000,000 Shares were held by Cheerhill, the entire issued share capital
of which is ultimately beneficially owned as to 38.0% by Mr. Liu Hongliang,
26.0% by Mr. Wang Zijiang, 11.5% by Mr. Guo Xitian, 11.5% by Ms. Zheng
Hong, 6.5% by Mr. Guo Yucheng and 6.5% by Mr. Fu Anxu.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified by any
person who had any interest or short position in the Shares or underlying
Shares as at 31 December 2012, which are required to be notified to
the Company under the SFO or which are recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year under review was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures)
of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 32 to the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 also constituted
connected transactions. The following transactions between certain
connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) and the Group have
been entered into and/or are continuing for which relevant
announcements, if necessary, had been made by the Company in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

(@) On 30 June 2011, the Company and Henkel entered into the JV
Agreement pursuant to which the Company and Henkel have
agreed to form the JV Company. Upon the incorporation of the JV
Company on 23 February 2012, Henkel, being a substantial
shareholder of the JV Company, has become a connected person
of the Company. Hence, the continuing transactions contemplated
under the framework supply agreement (“Supply Agreement”)
entered into between the Company (acting on its own behalf and
on behalf of Weifang Parasia Chem Co., Ltd. (“Weifang Parasia”))
and Henkel AG & Co. KGaA (“Henkel AG") (acting on its own
behalf and on behalf of Henkel Ireland Ltd. (“Henkel Ireland”),
Henkel Puerto Rico Inc. and Henkel Ltda.), being associates of
Henkel, on 28 January 2011 constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules 14A.41.
During the year under review, Weifang Parasia has supplied
ethylcyanoacetate, methylcyanoacetate, nbutylcyanoacetate and
other products to Henkel Ireland, Henkel Puerto Rico Inc. and
Henkel Ltda from time to time under the Supply Agreement.

(b) On 6 November 2012, Weifang Dekel Innovative Materials Co.,
Ltd. ("Weifang Dekel”), a indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company entered into a master supply agreement (the
"Agreement”) with Henkel Ireland, pursuant to which Weifang
Dekel agreed to supply and Henkel Ireland agreed to purchase
products with different parameter and specifications as set out in
the Agreement annually. No transaction has been incurred during
the year under review.

The auditor of the Company was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules”, issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor of the Company has issued a report
containing the findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group under this section
in accordance with paragraph 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy
of the auditor’s report has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
transactions and confirmed that these transactions were entered
into by the Group (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business;
(ii) on normal commercial terms; and (iii) the transactions were
entered into in accordance with the agreements governing such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

On 29 May 2012, Weifang Binhai Petro-chem Co., Ltd. (“Weifang
Binhai”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and #55+f
& XA A A (transliterated as Weifang Xiang Rui Properties
Ltd.) (“Weifang Xiang Rui”), an indirect subsidiary of Weifang
Tianhong, which is connected person to the Company as Mr. Liu
Hongliang, Mr. Wang Zijiang, Mr. Guo Xitian and Mr. Guo Yucheng,
all being executive Directors, have majority voting control of
Weifang Tianhong, entered into an agreement (“Agreement A")
pursuant to which Weifang Binhai has agreed to purchase and
Weifang Xiang Rui has agreed to sell the 156 residential units with
an aggregate building area of approximately 9,200 sq.m. to be
constructed on the parcel of land located adjacent to the northern
exit of parcel A land at /& R4t[& (transliterated as Jumin Xiaoqu),
FEEGHESE (transliterated as Xiangrui Yaju), Weifang Binhai Economic
Technological Development Area, Shandong Province, the PRC (the
“Property”) at a consideration (the “Consideration”) determined
by an independent property valuer to conduct a valuation on the
Property after the acceptance of the examination on the completed
construction of the Property but prior to completion (the
“Completion”) of the acquisition in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the Agreement A. A prepayment of
RMB 18,000,000 has been paid by Weifang Binhai to Weifang Xiang
Rui has constituted a connected transaction on the part of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year
under review. In the event the valuation of the Property exceeds
RMB 18,000,000, the Consideration will be adjusted upwards on
a dollar to dollar basis and shall be paid by Weifang Binhai to
Weifang Xiang Rui in cash at the Completion. In the event the
valuation of the Property is less than RMB18,000,000, the
Consideration will be adjusted downwards on a dollar to dollar
basis and Weifang Xiang Rui shall pay the excess amount to
Weifang Binhai in cash at the Completion.

The above disclosure of the connected transactions of the Group

has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d) Pursuant to a lease (the “Lease”) entered into between Weifang
Parasia, being a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and
Weifang Tianhong, Weifang Parasia leased the office premises
owned by Weifang Tianhong for a term of three years commencing
on 1 January 2012 at an annual rental payment of RMB 180,000,
payable at the end of each year. Besides, Weifang Parasia, has
supplied steam to MW I EE IR B R A A (transliterated as
Weifang Xiang Rui Properties Management Ltd.) (“Weifang Xiang
Rui Properties”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Weifang
Tianhong, at fair market terms in total sum of approximately
RMB474,000 during the year under review (the “Supply”).

Weifang Tianhong and Weifang Xiang Rui Properties are connected
person to the Company as Mr. Liu Hongliang, Mr. Wang Zijiang,
Mr. Guo Xitian and Mr. Guo Yucheng, all being executive Directors,
have majority voting control of Weifang Tianhong, the transaction
under the Lease constituted a continuing connected transaction
of the Company and the transaction of the Supply also constituted
a connected transaction of the Company. However, as both of the
Lease and the Supply are de minimise transactions under Rule
14A.33(3) of the Listing Rules, they were exempted from the
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above and in note 32 to the financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2012, there were no other transactions
which need to be disclosed as connected transactions in accordance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules and no contract of significance,
between the Company, controlling Shareholders, or any of its subsidiaries
and fellow subsidiaries or in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, or which are required to be disclosed under
the Listing Rules or the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the laws
of Hong Kong) subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year under review.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group was entered
into or existed during the year under review.

CONFIRMATION FROM INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent.
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EE RS Directors’ Report

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the Group is set up by the Board on the basis
of the merit, qualifications and competence of the employees.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Company will be reviewed by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to factors including the Group’s operating results, responsibilities
required of the Directors and senior management of the Company and
the comparable market statistics.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Under the share option scheme of the Company (the “Share Option
Scheme”) adopted by the Company on 4 October 2006, the maximum
number of Shares available for issue upon exercise of all options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and other share
option schemes in aggregate shall not exceed 30% of the number of
issued Shares from time to time. The total number of Shares issued and
which may be issued upon exercise of all options (whether exercised,
cancelled or outstanding) granted in any 12-month period to each
participant must not exceed 1% of the number of Shares in issue unless
approval by the Shareholders in a general meeting. An option may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at
any time during a period to be notified by the Board, which must not be
more than ten years from the date of grant. Any Share allotted and
issued on the exercise of options will rank pari passu with other Shares
in issue on the date of allotment.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of nominal consideration of HK$1
in total by the eligible participants that become grantees. Each share
option will be vested immediately at the date when the option is
accepted. The share options will lapse immediately after the grantee
ceases to be eligible participant of the Group. The options will lapse
due to the expiry of the option’s exercise period.

The subscription price for the Shares to be issued upon exercise of the
options shall be no less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a Share on the date of grant. The subscription price
will be established by the Board at the time the option is offered to the
participants.

No share option has been offered or granted by the Company under the
Share Option Scheme during the year under review.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the
Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

— T — —F %3 ANNUAL REPORT 2012 29



ES RS Directors’ Report

BE  HEUROARATLDES

ERBEFEA  ARAIHEEANERRASER
B HEIBRARBERMLETES

RANBERE

RTEARRER 2 ZEERATES - RIEAR
ARAFREEMENERMIERMA - EFHE
RARF —EMF EMARRFTHRE N RARREF

e o

BIREBRTA
ARTBNRBEHAEZ DEEARS - BHA
AEFRBEE AR EHBRATHRES
FAZAZ DEEARER -

RARERMNZETAEAEZEZEEARAIES
ZSFR) o AR BIEN BBEERE  TEEER
R BENBE-_E——F+-_A=+—HIH
BFE —EBTIZESTRIFTE 2 R EIZ%E -

B 1 B ED
HE-_ZZNEFE+-_A=1t—HIWBREEZH
BHEIBYE ([HEEE]  BEEMESFTMm
MEZ AR EREERB I EERITAIE
wHAERAE (e RZE—ZF+—A8
ZHAEBAMEEBAMHT N EERIEATES
HESE HWERABRAIMYGEEZERIANRN
REZEE AT —EF+ A+ HERE
HoBET——F ZFT——FRFT—-FF
+Z A=+ —HUEFEMBRERIBALEESR
Bz o

R-E-=ZFRRBFAG L HERE—BR
AR ABBIEEZRR/ADEZEE -

AEEEH
FE
2=

B —_E—=%F=A=-+=-H

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year under review, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this report, based
on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the
Company has maintained sufficient public float as required under the
Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCEWITH CODE OF BEST PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining the high standard of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 31 to 43 of this annual report.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code for dealing in
securities of the Company by the Directors. After specific enquiry by the
Company, all the Directors confirmed that they had complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code for the financial year ended
31 December 2012.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The financial statements in respect of the financial year ended 31
December 2009 were audited by Grant Thornton (“GTHK"), now known
as JBPB & Co.. Due to a merger of the business of GTHK and BDO Limited
("BDO") to practice in the name of BDO as announced on 26 November
2010, GTHK resigned and BDO was appointed as the auditor of the
Company effective from 22 November 2010. The financial statements
for the years ended 31 December 2010, 2011 and 2012 were audited
by BDO.

A resolution will be proposed at 2013 AGM to re-appoint BDO as auditor
of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Hongliang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2013

30 Kb TR BEBR A 7 TIANDE CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED



RARHABLREFSKFNEEER - RE
B —F+-A=Z+—HUEFBFEAR ' &~
NEVIRA BT ETARAM SN[ EERE
BT (R—Z——FNA—BREITRETS
HAEIPEERAD ([SFRI) Frs 2 R A MR
= s

EEeTHRaARRMNEEEATR - AR
ZEFRFECTATHZIRE  ARBARER
CEFEAN—BEETTRZER TR - A&
BHETECREREBBMMT

558

EEAB
EEeRARENEEARAMEE  REEE
BEREYEEARAEBIAREARRRY
AEBENEBRRBE O HREERERVHESSH
o EEEREEEEAARRAKENRTRDN
EXZEQERET BUAELERE -EF9
TR ARERARENERTE R FERTERE

= o
>t

EERRE

EXZQRERTLXEANRBE  ETIEER
& ()VBIE Ries BEERBERNER  (NEBBY
EEEREBRREERELETAEERBRT
BPERREERTE (B REREERSR
EEABNEIRFEERER  (VHIE - &&
RERREREFMNRTEL  Wins AR E)E
SR ER REREEAREANEE ¢ (Vi)
A REEARBRNEMKEBE - BREFEMNZ
EREHREMNERENERE - WHEEEM
AERBREZANMAR © VilRIEEEZES®
MEBLMAESZREENBEESENERIER
M EERTFRAAECET  WELHES
EEDR ¢ R(vii)ie st R EER AR R EERBR MR
AZBIEBEK °

TEEBMS Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to building and maintaining high standards
of corporate governance. Throughout the financial year ended
31 December 2012, the Company has adopted the principles and
complied with the requirements set out in the “Code on Corporate
Governance Practices” (revised and renamed as “Corporate Governance
Code” with effect from 1 April 2012) (the “CG Code"”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The Board reviews the corporate governance practices of the Company
periodically to ensure the practices continue to meet the CG Code and
considered that the Company has complied with the applicable code
provisions of the CG Code during the year under review. The key
corporate governance practices of the Group are summarised as follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Roles of Directors

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Company by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs. The
strategic business direction of the Group and objectives for management
has been formulated by the Board. The Board has delegated the day-to-
day operation responsibility to the management under the supervision
of the general manager of the Company and various Board committees.
The Board reviews the performance of the Group against the agreed
targets and budgets on a regular basis.

Corporate governance function

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties,
which mainly include (i) developing and reviewing policies and practices
on corporate governance; (ii) monitoring and revising policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements as
appropriate; (iii) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management; (iv)
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct applicable
to employees and Directors; (v) reviewing the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report;
(vi) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s process of information
disclosure, including assessing and verifying the accuracy and materiality
of price-sensitive information and determine the form and content of
any required disclosure; (vii) reviewing the effectiveness of the committee
structure of the Board and the terms of reference of all Board committees
and their accountability for the corporate governance practices and make
amendment as appropriate; and (viii) reviewing and monitoring the
Company’s communication policy with its shareholders and stakeholders.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Corporate governance function (Continued)

During the year under review, the Board has (i) reviewed and revised the
corporate governance policy and practices of the Company to comply
with the revised CG Code and Listing Rules requirements; (ii) reviewed
the communication policy of the Company; (iii) reviewed and revised
the information disclosure policy of the Company; (iv) developed and
monitored the code of conduct applicable to employees of the Company
and Directors; (v) reviewed and monitored the training records of
Directors and senior management; and (vi) reviewed the Company's
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

Composition

The Board comprises seven Directors, including four executive Directors
and three independent non-executive Directors. The biographical details
of the Directors are set out on pages 11 to 12 of this annual report. The
composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director having
sound knowledge, experience and/or expertise relevant to the business
operations and development of the Group. The independent non-
executive Directors, with at least one independent non-executive Director
possessing the appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise, who offer diversified expertise
and experience, contribute significantly to the important function of
advising management on strategy and policy development. All the
Directors are aware of their collective and individual responsibilities to
the Shareholders and have exercised their duties with care, skill and
diligence, contributing to the successful performance of the Group.

There is no financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationship among the Chairman, members of the Board and the general
manager of the Company. All of them are free to exercise their
independent judgement. The Company has received from each
independent non-executive Director a written annual confirmation of
their independence and is satisfied with their independence in accordance
with the Listing Rules.

The Company maintains appropriate liability insurance to indemnify its
Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The
insurance coverage will be reviewed on an annual basis.

Appointment, re-election and removal of Directors

All Directors are appointed for a specific term of three years and subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years in accordance
with the Articles of Association.
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TEEBMS Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Appointment, re-election and removal of Directors
(Continued)

At each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being, or if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one third, are required to retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at
least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election and shall continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting
at which he retires. The Directors to retire by rotation will be those who
have been the longest in office since their last re-election or appointment
but as between persons who become or were last re-elected Directors
on the same day those retire will (unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by lot. To further enhance accountability,
any further re-appointment of an independent non-executive Director
who has served the Company for more than nine years will be subject
to separate resolution to be approved by Shareholders.

A Director may be removed by an ordinary resolution of the Company
before the expiration of his period of time (but without prejudice to any
claim which such Director may have for damages for any breach of any
contract between him and the Company).

Training

All Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities as
Directors and of the business and activities of the Group. A briefing is
provided and organised to ensure that newly appointed Directors are
familiar with the role of the Board, their legal and other duties and
responsibilities as Director as well as the business and corporate
governance practices of the Group. The company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) will continuously update all
Directors on latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulator requirements to ensure compliance of the same by
all Directors.

During the year under review, all Directors received regular updates and
presentations on changes and developments to the Group’s business.
Besides, all Directors have participated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by ways of attending training or
reading material relevant to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.
Directors are requested to provide their records of training they received
to the Company Secretary for record.

Company Secretary has attended no less than 15 hours of relevant

professional training to update her skills and knowledge during the year
under review.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Chairman and general manager

The Company does not presently have any officer with the title of chief
executive officer but with equivalent to the position of general manager
of the Company. In order to reinforce the independence and
accountability, the roles of the Chairman and the general manager of
the Company are segregated and performed by Mr. Liu Hongliang and
Mr. Wang Zijiang (Mr. Wang has been appointed as a general manager
of the Company with effective from 1 January 2012) respectively. There
is a clear distinction responsibility of the Chairman to mainly provide
leadership for the Board and ensure the Board is functioning properly,
with good corporate governance practices and procedures, whilst the
general manager of the Company is responsible for managing the day-
to-day operations, implementing business strategies and policies
approved by the Board, developing and formulating the organisational
structure, control systems and internal procedures and processes for
the Board’s approval. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairman and general manager of the Company has been clearly defined
and set out in writing.

Board meeting

The Board meets regularly at least 4 times every year. The Directors
participated in person or through electronic means of communication.
All regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to facilitate the
possible fullest attendance. The meeting agenda is set after consulting
with members of the Board. Each Director is invited to present any
businesses that he wishes to discuss or propose at such meetings.
Directors are required to abstain from voting and will not be counted in
the quorum present in the Board meeting if any director has a conflict
of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board.

The Directors have been invited to include any matters which they
thought appropriate in the agenda for the Board meetings. Notice of at
least 14 days has been given for each Board meeting. Board papers are
circulated to all Directors not less than 3 days before the Board meetings
to ensure timely access to relevant information. Each Director is able to
access the management of the Group separately and independently if
more information is required. All the Directors are permitted to seek
independent professional advice, if required, at the Company’s expenses.

During the year under review, 4 times of Board meetings were held.
Directors has discussed the overall strategy as well as the operation and
financial performance of the Group, including annual budgets, annual
and interim results, approval of major capital transactions and other
significant operational and financial matters etc. Directors are kept
informed on a timely basis of major changes that may affect the Group’s
business, including relevant rules and regulations. The Board papers and
minutes of the Company are kept by the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong. All draft and final
versions of minutes have been sent to Directors for review, comment
and record within 30 days after each board meeting.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Board committees

The Board has established the following committees with defined terms
of reference, which are of no less exacting terms than those set out in
the CG Code. The terms of reference of the Board committees are posted
on the Company’s website and are available to Shareholders upon
request.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises the three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Leung Kam Wan, Mr. Gao Baoyu and Mr. Liu
Chenguang. Mr. Leung is the Chairman of the Audit Committee and he
possesses recognised professional qualifications in accounting required
by the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit Committee include:

(i)  ensuring the Group’s financial statements, annual and interim
reports, and the auditor’s report present a true and balanced
assessment of the Group’s financial position and complying of the
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and other requirements in
relation to financial reporting;

(i) reviewing the Group’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems;

(iiiy reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

(iv) recommending the appointment and remuneration of external
auditor; and

(v)  other duties are set out in its specific terms of reference.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties.

Two Audit Committee meetings were held during the year under review
to discuss the following matters:

(i)  reviewing the Group’s significant internal controls and financial
matters as set out in the Audit Committee’s terms of reference
with management and the external auditor of the Company;

(ii)  reviewing the independence and the audit findings of the external
auditor of the Company;

(iii)  reviewing the Group’s accounting principles and practices, listing
rules and statutory compliance, internal controls, risk management
and financial reporting matters;

(iv) reviewing the interim and annual accounts for the Board's approval;
and

(v)  reviewing the terms of engagement and remuneration of the
external auditor of the Company and recommending for the Board’s
approval.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

The members of the Audit Committee had also met with the executive
Directors to (i) review the reports of the internal control self-assessment
and the corporate governance compliance assessment of the Group; (ii)
evaluate the sufficiency of resources, the qualification and the experience
of the employees who were responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting of the Company, and the sufficiency of training courses received
by employees and the relevant budget and (iii) assess the annual budget
of the Group and make recommendations to the Board in a Board
meeting held during the year under review.

On 22 March 2013, the Audit Committee also held a meeting to review
the relevant financial statements and the external auditor’s audit finding
for the year ended 31 December 2012. The Audit Committee was
satisfied that the accounting policies and practices adopted by the Group
are in accordance with the current best practices in Hong Kong. The
Audit Committee found no unusual items that were omitted from the
financial statements and was satisfied with the disclosures of data and
explanations shown in the financial statements.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Liu Chenguang, an
independent non-executive Director, with Mr. Liu Hongliang, the
Chairman, Mr. Leung Kam Wan, an independent non-executive Director,
and Mr. Gao Baoyu, an independent non-executive Director, as the three
other members. The majority members of the Remuneration Committee
are independent non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible to (i) review and
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy of
individual Directors and members of senior management of the Group,
with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives as well as
considering salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group;
(i) review the Company’s share option scheme, bonus structure and
other compensation-related issues and make recommendation to the
Board; and (iii) other duties are set out in its specific terms of reference.

The Remuneration Committee consults with the Chairman on its
proposals and recommendations, and also has access to professional
advice if deemed necessary by the Remuneration Committee. The
Remuneration Committee is also provided with other resources enabling
it to discharge its duties.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee has held
one physical meeting to review of the remuneration packages for all the
Directors and senior management of the Group by reference to their
responsibilities and duties, the Group’s operating results and achieved
corporate objectives, after taking into account also the comparable
market conditions, and made recommendation to the Board for approval.
No Director shall participate in any discussion and resolution about his
own remuneration.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

Remuneration policy

The primary goal of the remuneration policy for Directors and senior
management of the Group is to enable the Group to retain and motivate
executive Directors and senior management of the Group by linking their
compensation with performance as measured against the corporate
objectives of the Company. The principal elements of the remuneration
package for Directors and senior management of the Group include basic
salary, discretionary bonus and share option. In determining guidelines
for each compensation element, the Company will make reference to
market remuneration surveys on companies operating in similar business.

The remuneration of independent non-executive Directors mainly
comprising directors’ fees which is subject to annual assessment with
reference to the market standard. Reimbursement is allowed for out-of-
pocket expenses incurred in connection with the performance of their
duties including attendance at the Company meeting.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee since 16
December 2011. The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Liu
Hongliang, the Chairman, with Mr. Liu Chenguang and Mr. Leung Kam
Wan, as the two other members, both are independent non-executive
Directors. The majority members of the Nomination Committee are
independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible to formulate
nomination policy, and making recommendations to the Board on
nomination and appointment of Directors and Board succession. The
Nomination Committee will also (i) review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (ii) identify individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships; (iii) assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; and (iv) other duties are set out in its specific terms
of reference. The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient
resources enabling it to discharge its duties.

The criteria for the Nomination Committee to select and recommend
candidates for directorship include the candidate’s skill, knowledge and
experience in relevant areas, the number of directorships of listed
companies held by the candidate, the time commitment required, and
whether the candidate can demonstrate a level of competence and
integrity required for the position of the Director.

Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year under review
to (i) assess the current structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board; (ii) review the
independence of independent non-executive Directors; and (iii) review
and recommend the re-appointment of the retiring Directors for
Shareholders’ approval at annual general meeting.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
The Safety and Environmental Protection Committee

The Safety and Environmental Protection Committee is responsible to
enhance the safety and effectiveness of production operations so as to
eliminate the operating risk of the Group. The Safety and Environmental
Protection Committee is chaired by Mr. Guo Yucheng, an executive
Director and other members are Mr. Gao Baoyu, an independent non-
executive Director and Mr. Fu Anxu, a chief engineer of the Group. The
primary duties of the Committee are include:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

to formulate the Group's overall safety and environmental
protection plans and regulations and make recommendations to
the Board;

to establish and maintain a safety and environmental production
operations system of the Group;

to examine and monitor the productions and operations of the
Group and ensure the Group's safety and environmental protection
policy and regulations are implemented effectively;

to ensure the production operations of the Group are complied
with all relevant rules and regulations promulgated by relevant
regulators and authorities from time to time; and

to respond and handle all complaints regarding the safety and
environmental issues and make recommendations to the Board
for improvement.

The Safety and Environmental Protection Committee has held one
meeting during the year under review to discuss the following issues:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

developing and formulating the safety and environmental
protection system for new production lines;

reviewing and ensuring the current safety and environmental
protection systems of the Group are comply with the relevant
regulations and rules; and

recommending to the Board for enhancing and upgrading the
waste water treatment systems in order to fulfill evolving business.
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858 (&) BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
REBEEERN SEEHFEEES  EEELZEE  During the year under review, the attendance record of each Director at
RRFRBERG 2 EHINWT : the Board meetings, Board committee meetings and annual general
meeting is set out below:
LEEHELE
Attendance of meetings
22K
RRZEE
BRREFAE Safety and
Annual ENZ88 H¥MZEE®  REZBE Environmental
general Ezg Audit Remuneration  Nomination Protection
meeting Board ~ Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee
BTES Executive Directors
Agnfrss Mr. Liu Hongliangs i 44 102 17 7 -
TFIEAE Mr. Wang Zijiang n 4/4 12 - - -
BHEMEL Mr. Guo Xitian /1 4/4 - - - -
DERKFAE Mr. Guo Yucheng’ i 4/4 - - - i
BUFHTES Independent non-executive Directors
PRELAE S Mr. Leung Kam Wan'46 11 4/4 0 /1 11 -
BERLELSS Mr. Gao Baoyu24 171 4/4 2 17 - i
BRAEEL S Mr. Liu Chenguang?3® 171 4/4 W) 17 17 -
EBE Management
R Mr. Fu Anxu® 11 - - - - 11
5T - Notes:
1. BERZEEEER 1. Chairman of the Audit Committee
2. EBERZEEgKE 2. Member of the Audit Committee
3. FMWNZEEXRE 3. Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
4. HFHEEEKE 4. Member of the Remuneration Committee
5. REZEEXRE 5.  Chairman of the Nomination Committee
6. REBZBEGNKE 6.  Member of the Nomination Committee
7. RERBRREZEEGER 7. Chairman of the Safety and Environmental Protection Committee
8. ZERRREEGKE 8. Member of the Safety and Environmental Protection Committee
REREBX ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

EEQRNREBEIDEERTE - ABRERRIRA
T2 AR FBH R AENTT AR ARA R R
I AR B AT = AR RO RS o

EXAAAEREBEEBSTMASRMNTEMS
HELEMZRBREBRAGIINEREREREN
BEEMAFHIIRSBHRE - EREBERF
Bl @R RE N EEN AT RM G RE
MERAE) AR - LASE R 75 R 7 R EKGF
HIERMEPNBERERRA - BENEAEE
MERTERER - MIZBERFL A B AE - &
NEYMNEZBENE R BN EERANFRFEI4E45
BZZHBEHE

EARTIH -

The Board aims to present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and prospects to
Shareholders and the public pursuant to all sort of statutory requirements.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
presentation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making

accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. The
responsibilities of the external auditor of the Company for the accounts
are set out in the Auditor’s Report on pages 44 to 45 of this annual

report.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

In addition, the Board has reviewed and considered the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staffs of the accounting and
financial reporting function of the Group and also considered the training
programs and budget during the year under review.

Management is required to provide detailed reports and explanation to
enable the Board to make an informed assessment before approval.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibilities for the Group’s system of internal
control and maintaining a sound and effective internal control system
of the Group to safeguard the Group’s assets and the Shareholders’
investment.

The internal control system of the Group comprises a comprehensive
organisational structure and delegation of authorities, with
responsibilities of each business and operational units clearly defined
and authorities assigned to individuals based on experience and business
need. Control procedures have been designed to safeguard assets against
unauthorised use and disposition, ensure compliance with relevant laws,
rules and regulations, and ensure proper maintenance of accounting
records for provision of reliable financial information used within the
business or for publication; and to provide reasonable assurance against
material misstatement, loss or fraud.

The Board is responsible for the overall risk management functions of
the Group. Risk management procedures has been set up and
implemented for the overall operations of the Group, which is in place
to provide a consistent approach on the risk management processes in
identification, assessment, treatment and reporting of all risks identified
affecting key business activities.

All executive Directors closely and directly monitor the daily operations,
business activities and review monthly financial results of the Group
regularly ensuring that all internal control procedures, compliance
controls procedures and risk management measures and procedures are
properly implemented even though an internal control department has
not yet built up until now. Executive Directors participate in the monthly
management meetings to review the Group’s financial and operational
procedures, fraud investigations, productivity efficiency and effectiveness
etc., and/or meetings held as and when required to address irregularities
immediately. Besides, the executive Directors take a constant review of
critical risk management control of the Group to ensure the business
operation is sound and effectiveness on an on-going basis.

The Group has continued to execute the self-assessment and evaluation
mechanism on internal control operations during the year under review
that is aimed to test the reasonableness of the existing internal control
operations, prompt employee to step in evaluation of the implementation
of internal control system, serves to rectify internal control operations
immediately if any shortcoming, facilitate the Board and the Audit
Committee to assess the internal control operations of the Group more
effectiveness.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS (Continued)

The Board has kept monitoring the business operation closely and
devoted to optimise the Group’s operation system, minimise its
operational risks and any irregularities areas by periodically review the
operation procedures of the Group during the year under review. An
internal control department is planned to be set up in near future to
formulate more control measures and put in place an integrated system
of internal control so as to support the business continuous development
of the Group.

The Board is responsible for the handling of the dissemination of price
sensitive information and other financial disclosure requirements
procedures. The Board is fully aware of its obligations under the Listing
Rules and reviews its compliance controls process regularly. The Company
should make disclosure immediately pursuant to statutory requirements.
Any unauthorised use of confidential or insider information is strictly
prohibited under the Company'’s policy. Employees who are privy or have
access to unpublished price-sensitive information of the Group has also
been notified on the adoption of the Model Code by the Company and
on observing the restricitions pursuant to Parts Xlll and XIV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code governing
securities transactions of the Directors. Each of the Directors has
confirmed, upon specific enquiry, his compliance with the Model Code
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012. The Company has also
adopted written guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model
Code for the relevant employees. The senior management, who, because
of their office in the Company, is likely to be in possession of unpublished
price sensitive information, has been requested to comply with the
provisions of the Model Code and the Company’s code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors. No incidence of non-
compliance of the employees’ written guidelines by the relevant
employees was noted by the Company during the year under review.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Right to convene extraordinary general meeting

Any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
reguisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting (the
“EGM") to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
(2) months after the deposit of such requisition.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited to the Company Secretary
at the Company’s principal place of business, and may consist of several
documents in like form each signed by one or more requisitionist(s).
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Right to convene extraordinary general meeting
(Continued)

If the request which has been verified is not in order, the Shareholders
making the request will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, an
EGM will not be convened as requested.

If within twenty one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All enquiries
must be in writing with contact information of the requisitionists and
deposited to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place
of business.

Right to put forward proposals at general meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move resolutions at
the general meetings other than a proposal of a person for election as a
Director under the Cayman Islands Companies Law (as amended from
time to time) or the Articles of Association. However, Shareholders may
suggest proposals by sending written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary following the procedures set out in the paragraph
headed "Right to convene extraordinary general meeting" above to
convene an extraordinary general meeting for any business specified in
such written requisition.

Right to propose a person for election as a Director

Pursuant to article 88 of the Articles of Association, no person other than
a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by the
Directors for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general
meeting unless a written notice signed by a member of the Company
(other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote
at the meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to propose
such person for election and also a notice signed by the person to be
proposed of his willingness to be elected including that person’s
biographical details as required by rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, shall
have been lodged at the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
place of business provided that the minimum length of the period, during
which such notice(s) are given, shall be at least seven (7) days and that (if
the notices are submitted after the dispatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election) the period for lodgment of such
notice(s) shall commence on the day after the dispatch of the notice of
the general meeting appointed for such election and end no later than
seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting.
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TEEBMS Corporate Governance Report

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers its annual general meeting as an important
channel for face-to-face dialogue with Shareholders. The Chairman and
either the chairman of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee or their representatives would attend the annual general
meeting of the Company answering and explaining to Shareholders issues
relating to the Group’s business strategies and financial results and
proposed resolutions at the general meeting. At the commencement of
the meeting, the chairman of the meeting has explained the detailed
procedures for conducting a poll and then answers any questions from
Shareholders regarding voting by way of a poll.

In addition, the Company also communicates to its shareholder through
announcements and annual and interim reports. All such reports and
announcements can also be accessed via the Company’s website and
the website of the Stock Exchange. The Directors, Company Secretary
or other appropriate members of the management team also respond
to inquiries from Shareholders and investment community promptly.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The nature and ratio of annual fees to external auditor of the Company
for non-audit services and for audit services are subject to scrutiny by
the Audit Committee. The provision of non-audit services by the external
auditor of the Company requires prior approval of Audit Committee so
as to ensure that the independence and objectivity of the external auditor
of the Company will not be impaired. Details of the fees paid or payable
to the external auditor of the Company for the financial year ended 31
December 2012 are as follows:

Audit services HK$540,000
Non-audit services
Review of interim financial statements HK$50,000

On behalf of the Board
Liu Hongliang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2013
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TIANDE CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tiande
Chemical Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
“the Group”) set out on pages 46 to 120, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31
December 2012, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of cash flows and the consolidated statement of changes in
equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

BDO Limited, a Hong Kong limited company, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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B HEIRS Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2012 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Tsui Ka Che, Norman

Practising Certificate Number PO5057

Hong Kong, 22 March 2013
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e T Consolidated Income Statement

HE_ZT——F+=-HA=+—HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

—E——fF —E——F
2012 2011
B 5 ARET T ARET T
Notes RMB’'000 RMB"000
B Turnover 6 1,003,895 972,163
HE AR Cost of sales (742,292) (752,402)
EX Gross profit 261,603 219,761
H WA Other income 6 5,962 5,023
WEYEEMLE Revaluation gain on investment properties 16 590 230
HERX Selling expenses (22,212) (21,611)
THHAX Administrative expenses (33,808) (35,140)
BF 7B PR AR Finance costs 7 (8,692) (6,642)
TESRTERNAFERIE  Fair value loss on derivative financial
instruments 29 (6,990) -
JE(E—FR L EEHFEE T Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity 17 373 -
B BT 15 8 A0 & A Profit before income tax 8 196,826 161,621
TS’ F = Income tax expense 9 (37,644) (29,261)
REEBF Profit for the year 159,182 132,360
REZRAREAR A Profit for the year attributable to owners
FEAG 5 T of the Company 159,182 132,360
BRAN Earnings per share
- EARREE — Basic and diluted 13 AR%0.1887t AR®O0.1567T
RMBO0.188 RMBO0.156
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iRE8Z2 BN Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
HE-_ZT——F+=-A=+—HI% For the year ended 31 December 2012

—®——F e
2012 2011
AR%T ARBTTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
AEERF Profit for the year 159,182 132,360
Htt2m BIX) Wz Other comprehensive (expense)/income
MEBGIEE Gain on revaluation of properties - 392
BERMERELZ Deferred tax liabilities arising on revaluation
BEERIBAEE of properties - (98)
BREBINEBEERD Exchange differences arising on translation
E & =% of foreign operations (464) (689)
AEEHMEZEMAX Other comprehensive expense for the year (464) (395)
AEEXERBERE Total comprehensive income for the year 158,718 131,965
REERDTEBA Total comprehensive income for the year
EBiEEEWREE attributable to owners of the Company 158,718 131,965
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RO MBARIRE Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R-ZF——F+_H=+—H As at 31 December 2012

—E——F —F——%F
2012 2011
iK=2 AR® T ARBTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
EERAE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
RBEE Non-current assets
W - BREREE Property, plant and equipment 14 473,262 399,279
TERT T A E IR Prepaid land lease payments 15 54,001 55,294
"B Investment properties 16 13,030 12,440
EEME BELEREBZ Deposits paid for acquisition of
EfNET® property, plant and equipment 22,008 2,432
P—EHEREEHEE 2R Interest in a jointly controlled entity 17 48,511 -
?ﬁﬁlﬁlﬁég Deferred tax assets 18 = 63
610,812 469,508
REEE Current assets
FE Inventories 19 58,814 85,529
B 5 RUER R EWEE Trade and bills receivable 20 210,666 210,348
TE A FRIB F H Ath FE UK IR Prepayments and other receivables 29,913 15,577
FEY— B HFEE %‘Jfg‘iaf*/h\ Amount due from a jointly controlled entity 17 443 -
BEEIFRITER Pledged bank deposits 21 = 13,400
RITHIIR & A5 54 Bank and cash balances 21 49,962 63,889
349,798 388,743
REAE Current liabilities
5 ENER Trade payables 22 17,498 37,851
FEAT R BR X R EL M FE {5 3R TE Accruals and other payables 65,056 53,654
RITIEE Bank borrowings 23 57,000 70,000
BNERfi B A E Current tax liabilities 13,421 9,681
152,975 171,186
REBEEFRE Net current assets 196,823 217,557
REERRBER Total assets less current liabilities 807,635 687,065
FREBAE Non-current liabilities
IRITIHE Bank borrowings 23 17,000 39,000
PRI UL A Deferred income 24 13,191 15,931
BETRIARE Deferred tax liabilities 18 2,663 2,463
ESMIA Derivative financial instruments 29 6,990 -
39,844 57,394
BEEFE Net assets 767,791 629,671
= EQUITY
EAREEABGESR Equity attributable
to the Company’s owners
fi& 7 Share capital 25 7,786 7,786
i Reserves 26 760,005 621,885
g Total equity 767,791 629,671
I EFFT
LIU HONGLIANG WANG ZUIANG
EE -l
Director Director
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BB AR K Statement of Financial Position

R-ZE——F+=-H=+—H Asat 31 December 2012

—E——F —E——fF
2012 2011
B 5 ARET T ARETTT
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
EEHEAE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ERBEE Non-current assets
WME - BREREE Property, plant and equipment 14 8 -
R—EHREHER 2 Interest in a jointly controlled entity 17 48,416 -
RB AR Z%E Investments in subsidiaries 27 = -
48,424 -
REEE Current assets
& W B 8 R RIFRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 27 171,940 187,351
UG % B Dividend receivables 9,048 56,302
T8 AT I8 K H fth FE UL R IE Prepayments and other receivables 258 260
RITHIR & E 8 Bank and cash balances 21 7,522 10,784
188,768 254,697
REBAE Current liabilities
FEAT ARATER ZR R E M E 3/ 78 Accruals and other payables 739 503
739 503
REBEEEE Net current assets 188,029 254,194
BEERRBAERS Total assets less current liabilities 236,453 254,194
kRBERE Non-current liabilities
TESBTA Derivative financial instruments 29 6,990 -
6,990 -
EEFE Net assets 229,463 254,194
s EQUITY
[N Share capital 25 7,786 7,786
1 Reserves 26 221,677 246,408
RS Total equity 229,463 254,194
iz EFFI
LIU HONGLIANG WANG ZUIANG
- EE
Director Director
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FEBREARE=R Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE_ZT——F+_FA=+—HL%E For the year ended 31 December 2012

—¥——F —T——F
2012 2011
B &E AR¥ T AREFT
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
REEBREEZHERE Cash flows from operating activities
BR P15 B4 B F 08 T Profit for the year before income tax 196,826 161,621
HE Adjustments for:
F B WA Interest income 6 (510) (444)
FERZ Interest expenses 7 8,692 6,642
i Amortisation 8 1,293 1,293
e Depreciation 8 44,203 40,527
EEW AR Release of deferred income 6 (2,740) (2,740)
WHZERTZRFEZFEEEZ Reversal of write-down of inventories

[EI S to net realisable value 8 (230) (1,996)
FEEEMAZNERFE Write-down of inventories to net realisable value 8 189 -
BEYEEMILE Revaluation gain on investment properties 16 (590) (230)
BEEE RGOS 2 RIBRAY  Equity-settled share-based payment expenses 8 162 1,020
JE i — i L[R2 1) 2 88 0% 7 Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity 17 (373) -
MESRIANATEERE Fair value loss on derivative financial instruments 29 6,990 -
HEWE  BERSHL (Gain)/Loss on disposals of property,

(Flz) /F BB plant and equipment, net 8 (12) 5
W - BE k& HEME Written off on property, plant and equipment 8 174 -
RETEBESEHA 2 LE T Operating profit before working capital changes 254,074 205,698
FERL,/ () Decrease/(Increase) in inventories 26,756 (18,169)
BH RN - Bl REHR Increase in trade, bills and

HEWGTERTB ZIEE N other receivables and prepayments (14,661) (82,120)
BH5ENE - BAIRMEFKR  (Decrease)/Increase in trade payables, accruals

H & F0E Gl ) /280 and other payables (13,508) 12,960
FE e — ) £ R Increase in amount due from

B RIAE M a jointly controlled entity (443) -
REXBRERSE Cash generated from operations 252,218 118,369

BERER Income taxes paid (33,641) (27,081)
REEBREEZHETFE Net cash generated from operating activities 218,577 91,288
REXBELEZRERE Cash flows from investing activities
BEWE  BENREE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (133,316) (75,030)
HEBMLHASHEEYE © Proceeds on disposals of prepaid land lease

f%&uxﬁZFﬁ?%?k payments and property, plant and equipment 56 26,819
R REHE R 2 Interest in a jointly controlled entity (48,416) -
E%Zﬂm Interest received 510 444
BEIFEITFERRL (8 I)  Decrease/(Increase) in pledged bank deposits 13,400 (2,900)
REXEFMACEESEE Net cash used in investing activities (167,766) (50,667)
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FERETMER Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-_ZT——F+=-A=+—HI% For the year ended 31 December 2012

—E-C-F —EB——F
2012 2011
s ARBTT ARETT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
MEEREEZEHERE Cash flows from financing activities
BT S Dividends paid 12(b) (20,760) (32,012)
BRI E Interest paid (8,778) (6,680)
BERITEE Repayments of bank borrowings (139,066) (105,224)
HILRITIEE New bank borrowings raised 104,066 124,324
E BRI TR T 21T Proceeds from issue of new shares upon
MRz SRR exercise of share options 28 = 1,183
BMEXBFMAZEESFE Net cash used in financing activities (64,538) (18,409)
ﬁ%&ﬁ%%fﬁlﬁ = Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
wWA) 1R AR cash equivalents (13,727) 22,212
FNeReRkALEEEE Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 63,889 42,382
HNEFE R B8 v & Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (200) (705)
FRZAESRASEEER Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 49,962 63,889
BeRBALEEEELHAN  Analysis of balances of cash and
cash equivalents
RITHIR € &5 Bank and cash balances 49,962 63,889
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fnofemEE)zR Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE_ZT——F+=-HA=+—HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

MRB %A 2 HEELRE
NEERRE NMEE  FERE EXLERE  Foreign
RE  RHEE  BHEE BHLEE  Property Public Share-based Capital  currency  REEF EERE
Share Share Special Surplus revaluation welfare  payment contribution translation  Retained  Proposed ait
capital  premium reserve reserve fund reserve fund reserve reserve reserve profits  dividends Total
ARBTRE ARMTR AR¥TR ARTR ARTR ARTR AR%TR AR%TR AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥T:R
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
(WE26a)  (ME2eb)  (MfEE260) (W26d)  (HsEaee)  (HEE26f)  (Mf&26g)
(note 26a) (note 26b)  (note 26¢) (note 26d) (note 26e)  (note 26f) (note 26g)
WZZ--F-A-BL&H Balance at 1 January 2011 4216 108,177 31,182 30,144 1,359 633 530 4,162 (1,278) 316,378 32,012 527,515
BRE (31200 Dividends paid (note 12(b) - - - - - - - - - - (320120 (32012)
BATHLIR (Hi3E25) Bonus issue of shares (note 25) 3,552 (3,552) - - - - - - - - - -
REREETEMETINR Issue of new shares upon
(fii5¥28) exercise of share options
(note 28) 18 1,708 - - - - (543) - - - - 1,183
RELENEALH 2z Equity-settled share-based
FERX payment expenses - - - - - - 13 1,007 - - - 1,020
EREARS Transactions with owners 3,570 (1,844) - - - - (530) 1,007 - - (3010 (29,809)
REERA Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - 132,360 - 132,360
Et2@ (@%) /&  Other comprehensive
(expense)/income
EfENELE Surplus on revaluation
of properties - - - - 392 - - - - - - 392
RERMEMEEL Deferred tax liabilities arising
ERHEER on revaluation of properties - - - - (98) - - - - - - (98)
Exchange difference arising on
translation of
foreign operations - - - - - - - - (689) - - (689)
FEAMZE Total comprehensive
(Bx%)/hz88 (expense)/income
for the year - - - - 294 - - - (689) 132,360 - 131,965
PREETHE Appropriations to
statutory reserve - - - 7,800 - - - - - (7,800) - -
“E-—EEZRERE 2011 proposed final dividend
(Pi12(a) (note 12(a) - - - - - - - - - (0760) 20,760 -
R-8--& Balance at 31 December
T-A=T-REH 2011 7,786 106,333 31,182 37,944 1,653 633 - 5,169 (1,967) 420,178 20,760 629,671
WZZ--£-A-BL&H Balance at 1 January 2012 1,786 106,333 31,182 37,944 1,653 633 - 5,169 (1,967) 420,178 20,760 629,671
EfRe (M) Dividend paid (note 12(0) = - - - - - - - - - (20760)  (20,760)
RELENROEMZ  Equity-settled share-based
HERX payment expenses - - - - - - - 162 - - - 162
RBEEARS Transactions with owners - - - - - - - 162 = = (20,760)  (20,598)
EERR Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - 159,182 - 159182
2 (B%) /W& Other comprehensive
) (expense)/income
RAEGNEBMELS  Exchange difference arising
EXEE on translation of
foreign operations - - - - - - - - (464) - - (464)
EEEM2E Total comprehensive
(Bx%)/ha8E (expense)/income
for the year - - - - - - - - (464) 159,182 - 158,718
PREETRE Appropriations to
statutory reserve - - - 10,509 - - - - - (10,509) - -
S—ZFBERARE 2012 proposed final dividend
(HE12(a)) (note 12(a)) - - - - - - - - - (25750 25750 -
EGRY) Transfer (note 26(f)) - - - - - - - (5.331) - 5,331 - =
R-%-Zf& Balance at 31 December
T-A=t+-REH 2012 7,786 106,333 31,182 48,453 1,653 633 - - (2,431) 548,432 25,750 767,791
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B B FTM &F Notes to the Financial Statements

22— —F+=F=+—HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

GENERAL INFORMATION

Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands. The
address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The
Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries (together with
the Company referred to as the “Group”) are set out in note 27.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) consider the
ultimate holding company of the Group to be Cheerhill Group
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
“BVI").

The financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB") which
is the Company’s presentation currency and functional currency
of the principal operating subsidiaries of the Company and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
stated.

The financial statements on pages 46 to 120 have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") which collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"”), Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS") and Interpretations (“Int") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. The financial statements also include the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

were approved for issue by board of the Directors on 22 March
2013.
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B MR 5F Notes to the Financial Statements
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—#+=H=+—HI1-%E For the year ended 31 December 2012

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

New and revised standards adopted by the Group

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the

following new standards, amendments and interpretations issued

by the HKICPA, which are relevant to and effective for the Group’s

financial statements for the annual period beginning on 1 January

2012:

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of Financial
Assets

Deferred Tax — Recovery of
Underlying Assets

Amendments to HKAS 12

Other than as noted below, the adoption of the new HKFRSs had
no material impact on how the results and financial position for
the current and prior periods have been prepared and presented.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Disclosures — Transfers
of Financial Assets

The amendments to HKFRS 7 expand the disclosure requirements
for transfer transactions of financial assets, in particular where
the reporting entity has continuing involvement in financial assets
that it has derecognised. The newly required disclosures allow users
of financial statements to better understand the risks to which the
reporting entity remains exposed. And such information is relevant
in assessing the amount, timing and uncertainty of the entity’s
future cash flows. The amendments did not have an impact on
the Group's financial position, performance or its disclosures.

Amendments to HKAS 12 - Deferred Tax -
Recovery of Underlying Assets

The amendments to HKAS 12 introduce a rebuttable presumption
that an investment property which is stated at fair value under
HKAS 40 “Investment property” is recovered entirely through sale.
The measurement of the deferred tax liability or deferred tax asset
reflects the tax consequences of recovering the carrying amount
of the investment property entirely through sale. This presumption
is rebutted if the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale. If this presumption is rebutted,
the amount of deferred tax is measured based on the expected
manner in which the carrying amount of the investment property
would be recovered, using the appropriate tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted at the reporting date (Note 3(v)).
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22— —F+=F=+—HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 - Deferred Tax -
Recovery of Underlying Assets (Continued)

The Group has investment property located in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") measured at fair value of RMB13,030,000
as at 31 December 2012 (31 December 2011: RMB12,440,000) as
disclosed in Note 16. The Group has rebutted the presumption in
respect of its investment properties located in the PRC as they are
assessed to be depreciable and are held by a subsidiary with a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over
time rather than through sale. Deferred tax in relation to these
investment properties has not been re-measured.

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, certain
new and amended HKFRSs have been published but are not
effective, and have not been adopted by the Group.

The Directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will be
adopted in the Group's accounting policy for the first period
beginning after the effective date of the pronouncement.
Information on new and amended HKFRSs that are expected to
have impact on the Group’s accounting policies is provided below.
Certain other new and amended HKFRSs have been issued but are
not expected to have a material impact of the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) - Presentation
of Items of Other Comprehensive Income

The standard is effective for accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2012. The amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) require
the Group to separate items presented in other comprehensive
income into those that may be reclassified to profit or loss in the
future (e.g. revaluations of available-for-sale financial assets) and
those that may not (e.g. revaluation of property, plant and
equipment). Tax on items of other comprehensive income is
allocated and disclosed on the same basis. The amendments will
be applied retrospectively.

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

The standard is effective for accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2015 and addresses the classification and
measurement of financial assets. The new standard reduces the
number of measurement categories of financial assets and all
financial assets will be measured at either amortised cost or fair
value based on the entity’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial asset. Fair value gains and losses will be recognised
in profit or loss except for those on certain equity investments
which will be presented in other comprehensive income. The
Directors are currently assessing the possible impact of the new
standard on the Group's results and financial position in the first
year of application.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)
HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to HKFRS 9 to
address financial liabilities. The changes resulting from the
amendments only affect the measurement of financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss using the fair value
option (“FVO"). For these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in
the fair value of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit
risk must be presented in other comprehensive income. The
remainder of the change in fair value is presented in profit or loss,
unless presentation of the fair value change in respect of the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. All other
requirements in HKAS 39 in respect of liabilities are carried forward
into HKFRS 9. However, the loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts which have been designated under the FVO
are scoped out of these additions.

HKFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements

The standard is effective for accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013. HKFRS 10 introduces a single control model
for consolidation of all investee entities. An investor has control
when it has power over the investee (whether or not that power is
used in practice), exposure or rights to variable returns from the
investee and the ability to use the power over the investee to affect
those returns. HKFRS 10 contains extensive guidance on the
assessment of control. For example, the standard introduces the
concept of “de facto” control where an investor can control an
investee while holding less than 50% of the investee’s voting rights
in circumstances where its voting interest is of sufficiently dominant
size relative to the size and dispersion of those of other individual
shareholders to give it power over the investee. Potential voting
rights are considered in the analysis of control only when these
are substantive, i.e. the holder has the practical ability to exercise
them. The standard explicitly requires an assessment of whether
an investor with decision making rights is acting as principal or
agent and also whether other parties with decision making rights
are acting as agents of the investor. An agent is engaged to act on
behalf of and for the benefit of another party and therefore does
not control the investee when it exercises its decision making
authority. The implementation of HKFRS 10 may result in changes
in those entities which are regarded as being controlled by the
Group and are therefore consolidated in the financial statements.
The accounting requirements in the existing HKAS 27 on other
consolidation related matters are carried forward unchanged.
HKFRS 10 is applied retrospectively subject to certain transitional
provisions.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 11 - Joint Arrangements

The standard is effective for accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013. Joint arrangements under HKFRS 11 have
the same basic characteristics as joint ventures under HKAS 31.
Joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint
ventures. Where the Group has rights to the assets and obligations
for the liabilities of the joint arrangement, it is regarded as a joint
operator and will recognise its interests in the assets, liabilities,
income and expenses arising from the joint arrangement. Where
the Group has rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement as
a whole, it is regarded as having an interest in a joint venture and
will apply the equity method of accounting. HKFRS 11 does not
allow proportionate consolidation. In an arrangement structured
through a separate vehicle, all relevant facts and circumstances
should be considered to determine whether the parties to the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.
Previously, the existence of a separate legal entity was the key
factor in determining the existence of a jointly controlled entity
under HKAS 31. HKFRS 11 will be applied retrospectively with
specific restatement requirements for a joint venture which changes
from proportionate consolidation to the equity method and a joint
operation which changes from equity method to accounting for
assets and liabilities.

HKFRS 12 - Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

The standard is effective for accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013. HKFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent
the disclosures requirements about interests in subsidiaries,
associates and joint arrangements. It also introduces new disclosure
requirements, including those related to unconsolidated structured
entities. The general objective of the standard is to enable users
of financial statements to evaluate the nature and risks of a
reporting entity’s interests in other entities and the effects of those
interests on the reporting entity’s financial statements.

The Directors are in the process of making an assessment of the
potential impact of these new or amended HKFRSs and so far
concluded that the application of these new or amended HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of these financial statements are summarised
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented unless otherwise stated. The adoption
of new or amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s
financial statements, if any, are disclosed in note 2.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for the revaluation of investment properties
and certain financial instruments which are stated at fair
values. The measurement bases are fully described in the
accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions
are used in preparation of the financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge
and judgement of current events and actions, actual results
may ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.

Basis of consolidation and business
combination

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December each year.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are excluded from
consolidation from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains and
losses on transactions between group companies are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Where unrealised losses on intra-group asset sales are
reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested
for impairment from the Group’s perspective. Amounts
reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries have been
adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the
accounting policies adopted by the Group.
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TESFHBEREE (&) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Basis of consolidation and business
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combination (Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests
issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date
fair value and the resulting gains or losses are recognised in
profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-
transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling interests
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from new
information obtained within the measurement period (a
maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about
the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an asset
or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interest
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant assets or
liabilities were disposed of.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Basis of consolidation and business
combination (Continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus the non-controlling interests’ share of
subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income
is attributed to non-controlling interests even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to control the financial
and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from their
activities. The existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, subsidiaries
are carried at cost less any impairment loss unless the
subsidiary is held for sale or included in a disposal group.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividends received and receivable at the
reporting date. All dividends whether received out of the
investee’s pre or post-acquisition profits are recognised in
the Company’s profit or loss.

Jointly controlled entity

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates under
a contractual arrangement between the Group and other
parties, where the contractual arrangement establishes that
the Group and one or more of the other parties share joint
control over the economic activity of the entity.

Jointly controlled entity is accounted for using equity method
whereby it is initially recognised at cost and thereafter, its
carrying amount is adjusted for the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition change in the jointly controlled entity’s net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group's interest in the
jointly controlled entity are not recognised unless there is an
obligation to make good those losses.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its jointly controlled entity are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the jointly
controlled entity, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which
case they are immediately recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Jointly controlled entity (Continued)

(e)

(f)

The Company’s interest in a jointly controlled entity is stated
at cost less impairment losses, if any. Result of a jointly
controlled entity is accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.

Foreign currency translation

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency of the individual entity using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into RMB. Assets
and liabilities have been translated into RMB at the closing
rates at the reporting date. Income and expenses have been
converted into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates, or at the average rates over the reporting
period provided that the exchange rates do not fluctuate
significantly. Any differences arising from this procedure have
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the foreign currency translation
reserve in equity.

When a foreign operation is disposed, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss as
part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (other than construction in
progress) are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an asset
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable cost
of bringing the asset to the working condition and location
for its intended use.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(f) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided
to write off the cost less their residual values, if any, over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method,
at the following rates per annum:

4.5% — 5% or the lease term,
whichever is shorter

Buildings

20% or the lease term,
whichever is shorter
6% - 10%

18% — 20%

18% — 20%

Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery

Motor vehicles

Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment

The assets’ residual values, depreciation method and useful
lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss on disposal.

Construction in progress represents leasehold buildings and
plant and machinery under construction, which is stated at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Cost comprises
direct cost of construction as well as borrowing costs
capitalised during the periods of construction and installation.
Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the construction is
transferred to the appropriate class of property, plant and
equipment when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the assets for their intended use are completed. No
depreciation is provided for in respect of construction in
progress until it is completed and ready for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.
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B B FTM &F Notes to the Financial Statements

E-FT——F+ZA=1+—HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Prepaid land lease payments

Upfront payments made to acquire land held under an
operating lease are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. The
determination if an arrangement is or contains a lease and
the lease is an operating lease is detailed in note 3(n).
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line method over the
term of the lease/right of use except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the time pattern of benefits
to be derived by the Group from use of the land.

The prepaid land lease payments comprise a portion that is
held to earn rentals and the other portion that is held for
administrative purpose. As the portion held to earn rentals
cannot be sold separately and is insignificant, it is classified
as prepaid land lease payments rather than investment
property.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation. These include land
held for a currently undetermined future use and property
that is being constructed or developed for future use as
investment property.

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease.

On initial recognition, investment property is measured at
cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is
stated at fair value, unless it is still in the course of
construction or development at the reporting date and its
fair value cannot be reliably determined at that time. Fair
value is determined by external professional valuers, with
sufficient experience with respect to both the location and
the nature of the investment property. The carrying amounts
recognised at the reporting date reflect the prevailing market
conditions at the reporting date.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the fair value
or the sale of an investment property are included in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Investment properties (Continued)

0]

For a transfer of an owner-occupied property to an investment
property, the deemed cost of investment property is the fair
value of the owner-occupied property at the date of transfer
and any revaluation gain or loss, being the difference between
fair value and the previous carrying amount, is accounted
for as a revaluation surplus or deficit in equity. Increase is
recognised directly in equity, unless there was an impairment
loss recognised for the same property in prior years and a
portion of the increase is recognised in profit or loss to the
extent of that impairment loss. Decrease is recognised in
profit or loss for any decrease in excess of the amount
included in the revaluation surplus for that property.

Research and development activities

Cost associated with research activities are expensed in profit
or loss as they occur. Costs that are directly attributable to
development activities are recognised as intangible assets
provided they meet the following recognition requirement:

(i)  demonstration of technical feasibility of completing the
prospective product for internal use or sale;

(i)  there is intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

(iii)  the Group’s ability to use or sell the intangible asset is
demonstrated,;

(iv) the intangible asset will generate probable economic
benefits through internal use or sale;

(v)  sufficient technical, financial and other resources are
available for completion; and

(vi) the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset can
be reliably measured.

Direct costs include employee costs incurred on development
activities along with an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads. The costs of development of internally generated
software, products or knowhow that meet the above
recognition criteria are recognised as intangible assets. They
are subject to the same subsequent measurement method
as acquired intangible assets.

All other development costs are expensed as incurred.
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B B FTM &F Notes to the Financial Statements

EF_FT——_HF+=-A=1+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

Financial assets

Financial assets of the Group are classified into loans and
receivables and financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired and
where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation
at every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. When financial assets are recognised initially, they
are measured at fair value, plus directly attributable
transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed to assess
whether there is objective evidence of impairment. If any
such evidence exists, impairment loss is determined and
recognised based on the classification of the financial asset.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment losses. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate and transaction cost.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are mainly
financial assets held for trading and they are acquired for
the purpose of selling in the near term, or it is part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed
together and for which there is evidence of a recent pattern
of short-term profit-taking. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments
or financial guarantee contracts.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be designated as
a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss, except
where the embedded derivative does not significantly modify
the cash flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded
derivative is prohibited.

Financial assets may be designated at initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss if the following criteria
are met:

- the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the assets or recognising gains or losses on
them on a different basis; or

- the assets are part of a group of financial assets which
are managed and their performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy and information about the group
of financial assets is provided internally on that basis
to the key management personnel; or

- the financial asset contains an embedded derivative that
would need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets included
in this category are measured at fair value recognised in profit
or loss. Fair value is determined by reference to active market
transactions or using a valuation technique where no active
market exists. Fair value gain or loss does not include any
dividend or interest earned on these financial assets. Dividend
and interest income is recognised in accordance with the
Group's polices.

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed to
determine whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment.
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B B FTM &F Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F+=-F=+—HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial assets
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about one or more of the following loss events:

- Significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

- It becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- Significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
an investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets include
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows from the group of financial
assets. Such observable data includes but not limited to
adverse changes in the payment status of debtors in the
group and, national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the group.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans
and receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). The amount of the loss
is recognised in profit or loss of the period in which the
impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to the
extent that it does not result in a carrying amount of the
financial asset exceeding what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is
recognised in profit or loss of the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

()

(m)

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of
completion and applicable selling expenses. Cost is
determined using the weighted average basis, and in the
case of work in progress and finished goods, comprise direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads, and where appropriate, subcontracting charges.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and short term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include bank borrowings and
trade payables, accruals and other payables. They are included
in line items in the statement of financial position as bank
borrowings under current and non-current liabilities, trade
payables and accruals and other payables.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
interest related charges are recognised in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note

3(u)).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligations
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds
(net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.
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B B FTM &F Notes to the Financial Statements

EF_FT——_HF+=-A=1+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Financial liabilities (Continued)

(n)

Borrowings (Continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

Trade payables, accruals and other payables

Trade payables, accruals and other payables are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form
of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases, with the
following exceptions:

Property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property
is classified as an investment property on a property-
by-property basis and, if classified as investment
property, is accounted for as if held under a finance
lease (see note 3(h)).
(ii) Operating lease charges as the lessee
Where the Group has the right to use the assets held
under operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
method over the lease terms except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the time
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased assets.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rental are charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
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(n) Leases (Continued)
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(iii) Assets leased out under operating leases as the
lessor
Assets leased out under operating leases are measured
and presented according to the nature of the assets.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised as an expense over
the lease term on the same basis as the rental income.

Rental income receivable from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line method
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
time pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of
the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent
rentals are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.

(o) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
of the amount of the obligation can be made. Where the
time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Group are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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B B FTM &F Notes to the Financial Statements

EF_FT——_HF+=-A=1+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course of the
allocation of purchase price to the assets and liabilities
acquired in a business combination. They are initially
measured at fair value at the date of acquisition and
subsequently measured at the higher of the amount that
would be recognised in a comparable provision as described
above and the amount initially recognised less any
accumulated amortisaton, if appropriate.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have been
issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares
are deducted from share premium (net of any related income
tax benefits) to the extent that they are incremental cost
directly attributable to the equity transaction.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of goods and the use by others of
the Group’s assets yielding interest. Provided it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised as follows:

Sales of goods are recognised upon transfer of the significant
risks and rewards of ownership to the customer. This is usually
taken as the time when the goods are delivered and the
customer has accepted the goods.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss in equal installments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease terms. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals
are recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are earned.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using
the effective interest method.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

(s)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.
Government grants are deferred and recognised in profit or
loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs
that the grants are intended to compensate. Government
grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and
equipment are included in liabilities as deferred income in
the statement of financial position and are recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line method over the expected
lives of the related assets.

Government grants relating to income is presented in gross
under “Other income” in the consolidated income statement.

Impairment of other assets

Property, plant and equipment, prepaid land lease payments,
investments in subsidiaries and interest in a jointly controlled
entity are subject to impairment testing.

All these assets are tested for impairment whenever there
are indications that the asset’s carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of
fair value, reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent from
those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generate
cash inflow independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a
result, some assets are tested individually for impairment and
some are tested at cash-generating unit level.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount and only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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TESHHRME (&) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
t EERA (t) Employee benefits
EBABER Retirement benefits
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Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for all of its employees who are eligible to
participate in the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
the PRC are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
as employees render services during the year. The Group’s
obligations under these plans are limited to the fixed
percentage contributions payable.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave
and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates equity-settled share-based compensation
plans to certain employees and a supplier. All employee
services received in exchange for the grant of any share-based
compensation are measured at their fair values. These are
indirectly determined by reference to the equity instruments
awarded. Their value is appraised at the grant date and
excludes the impact of any non-market vesting conditions
(for example, profitability and sales growth targets).
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

(u)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Share-based compensation (Continued)

All share-based compensation is recognised as an expense
in profit or loss over the vesting period if vesting conditions
apply, or recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the equity instruments granted vest immediately unless
the compensation qualifies for recognition as asset, with a
corresponding increase in the share-based payment reserve
in equity. If vesting conditions apply, the expense is recognised
over the vesting period, based on the best available estimate
of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. Non-
market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about
the number of equity instruments that are expected to vest.
Estimates are subsequently revised, if there is any indication
that the number of equity instruments expected to vest differs
from previous estimates.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve will
be transferred to share premium. After vesting date, when
the vested share options are later forfeited or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised
in share-based payment reserve will be transferred to retained
profits.

For shares transferred to an employee of the Company by
the Company’s ultimate holding company, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair value
of shares granted at the grant date, and is expensed on a
straight-line method over the vesting period with a
corresponding increase in equity. At each reporting date, for
shares granted to an employee with non-market performance
vesting conditions, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of shares that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the estimates during the vesting
period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition, construction or
production of any qualifying asset are capitalised, as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset, during the period of time that
is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale are being undertaken. A qualifying asset is an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs
are expensed when incurred.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are complete.
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TESFHBERBE (&) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(v) Accounting for income tax
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Income tax for the year comprises current tax and deferred
tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to
the current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the
reporting date. They are calculated according to the tax rates
and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they
relate, based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes
to current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a
component of tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available to be
carried forward as well as other unused tax credits, to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit, including existing
taxable temporary differences, will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unused tax credits can be utilised.

An exception to the general requirement on determining the
appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax amount
is when an investment property is carried at fair value under
HKAS 40 "Investment Property”. Unless the presumption is
rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on these investment
properties are measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of these investment properties at their carrying
amounts at the reporting date. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied in the
property over time, rather than through sale.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and interest
in a jointly controlled entity, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period the liability is settled
or the asset realised, provided they are enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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3.

—#+=H=+—HI1-%E For the year ended 31 December 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

(w)

Accounting for income tax (Continued)

Income tax are recognised in profit or loss except when they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income in
which case the tax is also recognised in comprehensive
income.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented in
net if, and only if,

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts; and

(b) it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities in net if, and only if,

(@) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

(b)  the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

(i)  the same taxable entity; or

(i)  different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the chief operating decision maker
(i.e. executive Directors) for their decisions about resources
allocation to the Group’s business components and for their
review of the performance of those components. The
business components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive Directors are determined following
the Group’s major product and service lines.
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TESFHBERBE (&) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(w) 2 EE®E (&) (w) Segment reporting (Continued)
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The Group has identified the following reportable segments:

(i) Cyanoacetic acid and its ester products: Research and
development, manufacture and sale of cyanoacetic acid
and its ester products;

(i) Sodium cyanide and its derivative products: Research
and development, manufacture and sales of sodium
cyanide and its derivative products;

(iii)  Alcohol products: Research and development,
manufacture and sale of alcohol products;

(iv) Chloroacetic acid and its derivative products: Research
and development, manufacture and sale of chloroacetic
acid and its derivative products;

(v)  Fine petrochemical products: Research and
development, manufacture and sale of fine

petrochemical products; and

(vi) Other by-products: Sale of other by-products, e.g.
steam.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately as
each of the product and service lines requires different
resources as well as marketing approaches. Inter-segment
sales are priced with reference to prices charged to external
parties for similar orders.

The measurement policies the Group used for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those used
in its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs, except
that:

- expenses related to share-based payments

- rental income, rental costs and fair value gains related
to investment properties

- share of profit of a jointly controlled entity
- fair value loss on derivative financial instruments
- finance costs

- income tax
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(w) Segment reporting (Continued)

(x)

- corporate income and expenses which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment

are not included in arriving at the operating results of the
operating segment.

Segment assets include all assets but investment properties.
In addition, corporate assets which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment are not allocated to a segment, which primarily
applies to the Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment and are not allocated to a segment. These include
deferred tax liabilities attributable to investment properties
and the Group's headquarters, and borrowings undertaken
specifically to fund the acquisition of these assets.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to reportable
segments.

Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(x) Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;

and

(iii)

dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below:

()

(i)

(iii)

Useful lives and depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for the Group’s property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. The Group will revise the
depreciation charge where useful lives are different to those
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

Estimated fair values of investment properties

The Group appointed a firm of independent professional
valuers to assess the fair values of the investment properties.
In determining the fair values, the valuers have used a method
of valuation which involves input of certain estimates. The
Directors have exercised their judgement and are satisfied
that the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions.

Inventory valuation

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expense. These estimates are
based on the current market conditions and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customers’ taste and competitors’ actions in response to serve
industry cycles. The Group will reassess the estimates by each
reporting date.

The assessment of the estimated net realisable value involves
judgement and estimates. Where the actual outcome in
future is different from the original estimates, such difference
will impact the carrying value of inventories and write-down/
reversal of write-down in the period in which such estimates
have been changed.
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— 4+ = F=+—H I Z For the year ended 31 December 2012

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Estimated impairment on property, plant and
equipment

At each reporting date, management makes an assessment
on whether there is objective evidence that the property, plant
and equipment are impaired in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in note 3(s). These calculations
require the use of estimates.

Fair value of derivative financial instruments

Pursuant to the joint venture agreement entered between
the Company and the joint venture partner on 30 June 2011
("JV Agreement”), the Company and the joint venture
partner are granted call and put option respectively that
entitled the Company to require the joint venture partner to
sell 45% the joint venture partner’s interest in the jointly
controlled entity and entitled joint venture partner to require
the Company to purchase 45% joint venture partner’s interest
in the jointly controlled entity. Further details are set out in
note 29. The derivative financial instrument was accounted
as a financial liability and stated at fair value in accordance
with the accounting policies stated in note 3(j). The fair value
of derivative financial instruments was estimated by
independent professional valuer based on Binomial Lattice
Model, it should be noted that the valuation was based on
certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and
might materially differ affect the estimation of the fair value
of derivative financial instruments.

Income taxes and deferred taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and the
PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes and the timing of payment of the
related taxes. There are certain transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. When the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
provision in the period in which such determination is made.

Withholding taxes arising from the distributions of
dividends

The Group’s determination as to whether to accrue for
withholding taxes from the distribution of dividends from
the subsidiaries in the PRC according to the relevant tax
jurisdictions is subject to judgement on the timing of the
payment of the dividends, where the Group considers that if
it is probable that the profits of the subsidiaries in the PRC
earned after 1 January 2008 will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future, then no withholding taxes are provided.
Details of the unrecognised deferred tax liabilities in this
respect are set out in note 18.
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HELKEDHRBRBHEDBEERER

8= MERORE RRIZE —EEEL -

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive Directors have identified the Group's six product and
service lines as operating segments as further described in note

These operating segments are monitored and strategic decisions
are made on the basis of adjusted segment operating results.

—E-Cf
2012
BBk
BCBR HTHER HCIBR
HEEER Sodium HMHER BlAR
Cyanoacetic cyanide Chloroacetic L IEER
acid and and its BEER acdandits Fine HitEER
its ester  derivative Alcohol  derivative petrochemical Other &t
products products products products products  by-products Total
ARETR ARETR AR%TR AREBTRT ARETR AR%TR AR%T:
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
g Revenue:
RENAEP From external customers 787,868 94,610 43,121 32,661 30,200 15,435 1,003,895
Az W Inter-segment revenue - - 74,824 230,788 20,678 = 326,290
DEX DAL € Reportable segment revenue 787,868 94,610 117,945 263,449 50,878 15,435 1,330,185
2R H 27 Reportable segment profit 200,081 24,825 8,913 123,864 2,075 4,819 364,577
nE - BERSERE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 16,456 5,868 498 9,850 272 6,199 39,143
HRETERFELZ Reversal of write-down of
FEZORSE inventories to net realisable value - - - - 230 - 230
HRENERFELZ Write-down of inventories to
3 net realisable value 140 - - - 49 - 189
E2RABEE Reportable segment assets 347,430 98,539 27,047 98,661 16,433 70,185 658,295
FErRENBEELM Additions to non-current
segment assets 23,118 56,166 - 15,580 = 143 95,007
NEHHH2EE Reportable segment liabilities 20,016 14,921 4,689 10,840 14,074 1,474 66,014

KiE TR AR A 7 TIANDE CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED



5.

BE_T—

B B FKM & Notes to the Financial Statements

—®F+=-H=+—HI1-%Z For the year ended 31 December 2012

DEVER (&) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
o
2011
Atk
AZBR  ETHER ALER
EEEER Sodium HETRER pikapi
Cyanoacetic cyanide Chloroacetic L IHER
acid and and its BEER  add andits Fine  EthEER
its ester derivative Alcohol derivative  petrochemical Other At
products products products products products  by-products Total
ARBTT  ARETT ARETT AREFr ARETR ARBTR  ARET:
RMB000 RMB000 RMB"000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
Wi Revenue:
RENFEP From external customers 752,322 91,946 63,955 16,158 37,092 10,690 972,163
7 EEz Inter-segment revenue - - 39,028 214,127 - 991 254,146
EEL G rdE: Reportable segment revenue 752,322 91,946 102,983 230,285 37,092 11,681 1,226,309
A2EHB2ER Reportable segment profit 163,853 20,559 5,929 89,461 1476 2,820 284,098
NE% BRREENE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 14,868 5,668 388 7,981 338 6,140 35,383
WRENERFELEE Reversal of write-down of
ESE inventories to net
realisable value 12 - 142 1,528 314 - 1,996
ERNHBEE Reportable segment assets 320,251 52,077 25,070 91,383 358 81,884 606,479
FERBHHBEEEM Additions to non-current
segment assets 15,723 1,890 253 21,960 - 728 40,554
ERN B AR Reportable segment liabilities 25,357 8,308 1,063 13,181 34,303 5,672 87,884

MARELE ﬁE‘BFfrfﬁlJZXIEm BrE A5

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments reconcile

WEFP 2V o ANEE T EMBEIR 2 HERN to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in the financial
N statements as follows:

—E——f —E——F

2012 2011

AR¥F T ARBFT

RMB’'000 RMB'000

A 2WH Iz W Reportable segment revenue 1,330,185 1,226,309

B 8H 5 BB 2 W & Elimination of inter-segment revenue (326,290) (254,146)

A Uz Consolidated revenue 1,003,895 972,163
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5. OEN (E) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

—E-C=F —ET——%

2012 2011

AR T AREBTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

EWHE 2w T Reportable segment profit 364,577 284,098
%ﬁ%ﬂ&)\ Rental income 837 555
WEYEEMIGE Revaluation gain on investment properties 590 230
e 4 B DARR 9 ST 2 5k Equity-settled share-based payment expenses (162) (1,020)
B 15 A AN Finance costs (8,692) (6,642)

TEemI AN A THEER Fair value loss on derivative

financial instruments (6,990) -

ETEI I 2WA Corporate unallocated income 1,280 1,283
ﬁ%?ﬁ%%@ﬂzsﬁfi Corporate unallocated expenses (35,161) (34,447)
FEAE — I REHE Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity 373 -
85 2B E 2 v Elimination of inter-segment profit (119,826) (82,436)
B BT 45 15 Al 47 & 5 T Consolidated profit before income tax 196,826 161,621
—EB——fF —E——F

2012 2011

ARET AR¥EFTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

AEMoOEcEE Reportable segment assets 658,295 606,479
R — R H A %'J“éfﬁi'f Interest in a jointly controlled entity 48,511 -
FEUT — PR BT & Amount due from a jointly controlled entity 443 -
TE T T A EKIE Prepaid land lease payments 55,294 56,587
w"EYE Investment properties 13,030 12,440
BERERIBEE Deferred tax assets - 63
EEBRITER Pledged bank deposits - 13,400
RITNIR e E 8 Bank and cash balances 49,962 63,889
Y - BB MEE Property, plant and equipment 112,006 101,877
B E Other corporate assets 23,069 3,516
IREREE Consolidated total assets 960,610 858,251
—E-C—F —EF——%F

2012 2011

AR T AREBTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

A2Wmoilcai Reportable segment liabilities 66,014 87,884
RITIEE Bank borrowings 74,000 109,000
REFIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 2,663 2,463
RBHIEAE Current tax liabilities 13,421 9,681
PTESRMIA Derivative financial instruments 6,990 -
HEMhEEE Other corporate liabilities 29,731 19,552
mABAR Consolidated total liabilities 192,819 228,580
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group’s revenue from external customers are divided into the
following geographical areas:

—E-—F —F——%F

2012 2011

ARET ARET T

RMB’000 RMB'000

A (A ) The PRC (domicile) 787,279 772,001
=0 Taiwan 47,992 37,762
S5 United States of America 32,651 31,395
E India 32,276 21,041
[isgZis Spain 19,369 7,840
BERE Ireland 16,592 18,510
= Germany 17,671 15,089
HAh Others 50,065 68,525
1,003,895 972,163

BEFZRE D AGYRE R SESE - A
RABDIERDEEERUNTE - HES
i@ E D ZERBDEE °

HE-_Z2——F+_-_A=+—HILEEET
DEPERLRBFEETMOLE - B 0 Fib
WRETHERBRSAE LB EEEESD
NER -HE_T——F+_A=+—HF
[E - AEERSERTEERRBMATHA
HREEBHNED  SULMRETHERE
B BB EPER - LB T O AREEN

aNy s
pal- I

The geographical location of customers is based on the location
at which the goods delivered. No geographical location of the non-
current assets is presented as the substantial non-current assets
are physically based in the PRC.

Certain comparative figures in the segment information for the
year ended 31 December 2011 has been reclassified. Previously,
sodium cyanide and its derivative products were reported under
the segment of cyanoacetic acid and its ester products. For the
year ended 31 December 2012, sodium cyanide and its derivative
products was reported as a separate segment as a result of the
change in information reported internally for the purposes of
resources allocation and assessment of business performance.
Comparative figures have been reclassified accordingly.
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BRBREMERA

AEE 2 EBEBEAME7THE - MAS
EEEWARTEBZMA - AERFA
EZEBWARKMBACERMT

—#+=H=+—HI1-%E For the year ended 31 December 2012

TURNOVER AND OTHER INCOME

The Group's principal activities are disclosed in note 27. Turnover
of the Group is the revenue from these activities. Revenue from
the Group’s principal activities and other income recognised during

the year are as follows:

—EB——fF —E——F
2012 2011
ARET T ARBTIT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
=E £ Turnover
HESCHBEERBER Sales of cyanoacetic acid and its ester products 787,868 752,322
HE SR E TTE M Sales of sodium cyanide and its
derivative products 94,610 91,946
HERBEEM Sales of alcohol products 43,121 63,955
HER MR AT RE® Sales of chloroacetic acid and its
derivative products 32,661 16,158
HERMAA B ITHEER Sales of fine petrochemical products 30,200 37,092
HEHEMEE R Sales of other by-products 15,435 10,690
1,003,895 972,163
Hg A Other income
LEME BEK Gain on disposals of property,

JEF W plant and equipment 12 -
I 7 B Government grants 444 226
FEUA Interest income 510 444
PRI A B (i 5E24) Release of deferred income (note 24) 2,740 2,740
AN Rental income 837 555
HIEWA Sundry Income 1,419 1,058

5,962 5,023
MHERA 7. FINANCE COSTS
—E—_F —E——%F
2012 2011
AR T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
T EBEZFERE Interest charges on:
REFRNEEEEZ Bank borrowings wholly repayable

|ITER within five years 7,725 6,642

ALIR R Discounted bills 967 -
8,692 6,642

PDINBETRITEE (RERERERERGE
B2 E MR RERGERRATERA
B2 B - BE—F— R —T——
A=+ —BILAE  HARBTEE
EHRZBRAEEZFED B AARE
2,821,0007T 2 A R#52,347,0007T °

The analysis shows the finance costs of bank borrowings, including
term loans which contain a repayment on demand clause, in
accordance with the agreed scheduled repayments dates set out
in the loan agreement. For the year ended 31 December 2012 and
2011, the interest on bank borrowings which contain a repayment
on demand clause amounted to RMB2,821,000 and RMB2,347,000
respectively.
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BRETSRBIREF 8. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX
—2-=fF —T——F
2012 2011
AR® T ARMF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
FRATEF AT RN 2 Profit before income tax is arrived at
ner GEA) - after charging/(crediting):
FEME (HFE113) Directors’ remuneration (note 11(a))
— e - Fees 310 314
— ¥ & RoERL — Salaries and allowances 3,544 3,363
— BRIRERIFTEI R — Retirement benefit scheme contributions 78 72
3,932 3,749
HAth B TRA Other staff costs 49,826 43,407
ROKAEFIET B3R Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3,086 2,533
& 45 & AR (D S+ 2 FRIEFISL Equity-settled share-based payment expenses 162 1,020
8 TR Total staff costs 57,006 50,709
1% BLRD BN Auditors’ remuneration 528 462
TEAT -t 78 & SRR 5 Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments 1,293 1,293
BRRBFX 2 FEKRA Cost of inventories recognised as an
(Fzk) - B expense (note), including 725,186 736,654
— WREAERFE Y — Write-down of inventories to
BE net realisable value 189 -
— WREAERFEY — Reversal of write-down of inventories to
FEZREERE net realisable value (230) (1,996)
mE - BRERERBITE Depreciation on property,
plant and equipment 44,203 40,527
R IE H 182K Exchange losses, net 436 1,599
LEME - HER (Gain)/Loss on disposals of property,
Bz (R /BE plant and equipment (12) 5
Y E N VS i Written off on property, plant and equipment 174 -
EEHEELIREFH Minimum lease payments under operating
e fﬁf}ﬁ”}?ﬁ leases in respect of leasehold land
HERT and buildings 663 594
Tﬂi%)\ﬂﬁ i Rental income less outgoings (823) (496)
EREERAZ Direct operating expenses arising from
WEYEMELER investment properties that generated
BEELERX rental income 14 59
I FE K AR Research costs 2,187 1,810

MisE © FEKRABIEAR41,884,00000 (=%
——4 : AR#38,123,0007T) 2 HHEEHT
ERSZ M AR42,180,000C (—ZF2——

£ AR#36,657,0007T) ZHHEE T

7N o

FEMR S5 A RE230,000T (ZF——
F /\EMW%OOOE)E%@ REZ
ERTEZMHBERES

—ZF0H -

was increased in 2012.

Note: Cost of inventories includes RMB41,884,000 (2011:RMB38,123,000)
relating to depreciation expenses and RMB42,180,000
(2011:RMB36,657,000) relating to staff costs.

The write-down of inventories of RMB230,000 (2011:
RMB1,996,000) was reversed as the market price of these inventories
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EZ2_F—_—F+_A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2012
FrERRAx 9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
—E——fF —E——fF
2012 2011
AR®BTT AR®TTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Eﬂgﬁﬁlﬁ PR RS Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax 37,381 29,088
EAEFIE (FFEE18) Deferred tax (note 18) 263 173
FR 5% 5 32 Income tax expense 37,644 29,261
FFr 5 %51 7 2 B2 bR 750 A1 4 711 36 DA AP B 12 3£ P AS The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the profit
B E 2B 2HRAT before income tax multiplied by the PRC enterprise income tax
rate is as follows:
—B-C-F —E——F
2012 2011
ARET ARBFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B P15 35 Al g A Profit before income tax 196,826 161,621
EHRBEMSHRBE25%  Tax at PRC enterprise income tax

(Z&——%F : 25%) rate of 25% (2011: 25%)

AEZRA 49,207 40,405
TT?DTRE%SEZ%M‘%%; Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 2,736 1,689
JEEFRW AT 2 Tax effect of non-taxable income (122) -
ANFEEBRBAAEFEARER  Tax effect of prior year's unrecognised tax

HIEEE 2 HETE losses utilised this year (83) (70)
RARREMEARES Effect of tax exemption and concession granted

HBHRekRGER s 8 to the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC (15,458) (12,480)
HAf Others 1,364 (283)
FrigfiF Income tax expense 37,644 29,261
BRAEEZ WATIEEBBEESKER No provision for Hong Kong Profit Tax has been made as the Group's
B M EEREBNETREE - income neither arises in nor derives from Hong Kong.
Zﬁﬁiﬂ%ﬂ:f—*ﬁﬁﬁ Ei)ﬂ[ﬂiﬂ:ﬂ*ﬁﬁﬁ Weifang Common Chem Co., Ltd. and Weifang Parasia Chem Co.,

YNSIZRCGY Im%ﬁﬁ ?RfR?ZS%%ZZW Ltd. are subject to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax at the rate of

—CHFZHPBEEERMAEH (=3 -——¢ : 25% for 2012 (2011: 25%).

25%) °
/ﬁfiﬁMblﬁﬁE RAIZBIRP BB E PTG Shanghai Dehong Chemical Company Limited is subject to the PRC
ME25% BN _—_E——F 2P BEBEMEN Enterprise Income Tax at the rate of 25% for 2012 (2011: 24%,
—E——%F: 24%7543 B EERRFERE being the applicable tax rate in Shanghai Pudong New District,
BRABEK) o the PRQ).
RfEL TR AR 7 TIANDE CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FiEREx (&)
RIBMEERENEEER - #HESAHLT
BERAR([HEE]) A ERESTRET
SRR EESR - aRBEHNBER T
NAEREEEFFERETEZHREMETE
IR - BB = F R Z50% i A B X
% AR ZE—ZF AU ESE AEEF
FE - QURBERAPBIEMSHEERHE
125% (ZZF——4%F : 12.5%) T Bt
FriS®t o

HYBBRSIHEME  ORMREESHE
BETK BRETHBRALEMERZZAE
BRREEERE - ZHEBER T RNFER
RIEEWA - HREZIERN -_ZTLF+
“A=t—BEBRRKCDTENX  HFABERE
BAEE 2 A E R R A BN o
BRAWARBEBRR 2 FREATRN

ZN/NSIE SSPNE oy il

ARABHEBEABEZRAETN AARE
159,182,000 (=& ——4F : AR
132,360,0007L) r EFAEE AR
8,073,000 (ZZF——F : FEARE
720,00070) EEARR R Z B HE AT o
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, Weifang
Binhai Petro-Chem Co., Ltd. (“Weifang Binhai”) is eligible for
certain tax holidays and concessions in the PRC. The tax holidays
and concessions are in the form of two years tax exemption from
the first profitable year, followed by a 50% reduction of the
applicable tax rate in the following three years. The PRC Enterprise
Income Tax has been provided for Weifang Binhai at the preferential
rate of 12.5% for 2012 (2011: 12.5%) as this was the fifth
profitable year.

A government grant obtained by Weifang Binhai for subsidising
the construction of the production lines and ancillary facilities for
manufacturing of high purity isobutylene, polyisobuylene and
chloroacetic acid which was recognised as a deferred income in
2006. As the construction has been completed as at 31 December
2007, the deferred income commenced to release to income over
the useful lives of the relevant assets. Such income is taxable for
the year in which it is released to profit or loss.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

Of the consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company
of RMB159,182,000 (2011: RMB132,360,000), a loss of

RMBS8,073,000 (2011: a loss of RMB720,000) has been dealt with
in the financial statements of the Company.
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EEMERIABRSMEAL II. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS
(a) E=W4 (a) Directors’ emoluments
NS ENFEMEEZHSMT The emoluments paid or payables to each Director were as
follows:
EHREF
TEEHR
Retirement
TR benefit
¥4  Ssalaries and scheme &t
Fees allowances contributions Total
ARETR ARETR ARE TR ARETTR
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
“E-CF 2012
HTEE Executive Directors
2t Liu Hongliang - 1,078 21 1,099
FFiI Wang Zijiang - 822 19 841
#BHH Guo Xitian - 822 19 841
BEK Guo Yucheng - 822 19 841
BUFHTES Independent
non-executive Directors
2RE Leung Kam Wan 114 = = 114
BEE Gao Baoyu 98 = = 98
AR, Liu Chenguang 98 - - 98
—E—ZF45H Total for 2012 310 3,544 78 3,932
—E--F 2011
BTEE Executive Directors
el Liu Hongliang - 1,017 18 1,035
FFI Wang Zijiang - 782 18 800
FEH Guo Xitian - 782 18 800
FEK Guo Yucheng - 782 18 800
BYFHTES Independent
non-executive Directors
Z2HRE Leung Kam Wan 116 - - 116
REE Gao Baoyu 99 - - 99
ARk Liu Chenguang 99 - - 99
“E——F4% Total for 2011 314 3,363 72 3,749

RAFERN > NEBEYEAES XM

T

TERIMANEE Z BB =X

BRAE(CE——%F 8 -

BE-_Z——_HRk-_F——%1t=-A
=+ REFERAYEEALHERE
TNEFHEXRAERETAME -

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any Directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the year (2011: Nil).

There are no arrangements under which a Director waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments for the years ended 31
December 2012 and 2011.
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FR-AREEEMEZABALE
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o BNESRE(CE——F : W
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group during the year included three (2011: three)

Directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above. The emoluments payable to the remaining

B)ANTRARFE 20T - two (2011: two) individuals during the year are as follows:
—B—=F —F——F
2012 2011
AR% T ARBF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
H R B M2 2 Bh Basic salaries and allowances 1,709 1,557
IR B AN T2 Equity-settled share-based
TRIEF X payment expenses = 1,008
RRAE M E B Retirement benefit scheme contributions 31 20
1,740 2,585
EBMRATEE : The emoluments were within the following bands:
AE
Number of Individuals
—E-CF —F——%
2012 2011
B < & [ Emolument bands
Z 21,000,000/ 7T ([7&7t]) Nil to Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$")1,000,000 = -
1,000,00178 0% HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000
1,500,000/ T 2 1
1,500,00178 0% HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
2,000,000% 7T - -
2,000,001/ E HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
2,500,000/ 7T - 1
2 2
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12. BRR 12. DIVIDENDS
(a) FRZEBREWMT : (a) Dividends attributable to the year:
—2—-fF —F——F
2012 2011
ARBT T ARBFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
KRR EFR&R Proposed final dividend of 3.8 HKcents
TiER3.8E (2011: 3.0 HKcents) per ordinary share
—E——F :3.081) 25,750 20,760
nEE B HERB IR 2 RER S0 The final dividend proposed after the reporting date have
KERAERBEBRZEE  HEKR not been recognised as a liability at the reporting date, but
MeREBZE_E——_F+-_HA=+—AH reflected as an appropriation of retained profits for the year
IFFEZRBEFNDIK ended 31 December 2012.
(b) REFERER IR 2B FE 8 (b) Dividends attributable to the previous
BEERELERKRE financial year, approved and paid during the
year:
—E—=F —E——fF
2012 2011
AR®BT T AREBTTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEFBREEZ Final dividend in respect of the previous
NEARR S - Tk financial year, of 3.0 HKcents
T@R3.08 1 (2011: 8.0 HKcents) per ordinary share
(ZZ——4% : 8.0/&1l) 20,760 28,455
BETHRFE No special dividend in respect of the previous
RS STIN# SN financial year (2011: 1.0 HKcent
(ZE——%F: per ordinary share)
FhEBR1.08 ) - 3,557
20,760 32,012
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3. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following

data:
—E——fF —E——F
2012 2011
ARET T ARET T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
FE R Profit for the year 159,182 132,360
ZERER

Number of ordinary shares

—2-=fF —E——F
2012 2011
HEERERAFZ Weighted average number of ordinary shares
TR A R for the purpose of basic earnings per share 846,878,000 846,229,704
BrEEEERR T2 Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
Efibea Share options = 399,646
AAESGREERTF 2 @R Weighted average number of ordinary shares
hn#E ¥ IR 2K for the purpose of diluted earnings per share 846,878,000 846,629,350

E_E-—F+-_A=+—HILEFEFRK
EARBFTIRBERAQTES ARG EFAR
159,182,000 (ZZE——F : AR
132,360,0007T) K& F A E 317X @R inAEF
B % 81846,878, 000 (=& — — 4 :
846,229,7040%) 5+ & -

HE-_Z——F+_A=1+—HILFETE
FABEHELBRR(ZE——F - Gk#
SERA BB ARRBEE AR EFARE
132,360,0007T & F N B 377 38 A% piAE F
I8 £1846,629,350/% 7T & o N EREERKR
HIARGTESREARRETF - HREAIER
JANA BT A BRI T i I _ AR B (E
BT 2 TR IRk 20399,6460%) -

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2012 was based on the profit attributable to owners of
the Company of RMB159,182,000 (2011: RMB132,360,000) and
on the weighted average of 846,878,000 (2011: 846,229,704)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares for the year ended
31 December 2012 (2011: the calculation of diluted earnings per
share was based on the profit attributable to owners of the
Company of RMB132,360,000 and the weighted average of
846,629,350 ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in
the basic earnings per share calculation plus the weighted average
of 399,646 ordinary shares deemed to be issued at no consideration
as if all the Company’s share options have been exercised).
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4. %  BER
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RE—AEER

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT — GROUP

/NS AND COMPANY
5 NG|
Group Company
U
EELE
HE e
NEEE  BEREM HE Furniture, ERIR BAERE
£ Leasehold Plant and Motor  fixturesand  Construction &it Office
Buildings improvements machinery vehicles ~ equipment i progress Total  equipment
ARETR  ARBTR AR¥TR AR¥Tn AR¥Tr AR¥TR AR%Tn  ARETx
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RZ2--%£-F-H As at 1 January 2011
KA Cost 109,452 35 396,819 1,946 3,788 12,875 524,915 30
ZEMERAEES Accumulated depreciation
and impairment loss (18,897) (35) (122,431) (1,309) (2,313 - (144,985) (25)
BEEE Net carrying amount 90,555 - 274,388 637 1,475 12,875 379,930 5
RERE Net carrying amount
W-E-——%-F-H As at 1 January 2011 90,555 - 274,388 637 1,475 12,875 379,930 5
1 Additions 4,209 - 6,910 710 881 47,349 60,059 -
HE Disposals - - - (75) - - (75) -
e Depreciation (5,291) - (34,330 (271) (635) - (40,527) (5)
BEIRENE Transfer to investment
(Fizt16) properties (note 16) (500) - - - - - (500) -
EXEL Adjustment on revaluation 39 - - - - - 39 -
g Transfer 3,214 - 31,697 - - (34,911) - -
RZE-—F+ZA=1-H Asat 31 December 2011 92,579 - 278,665 1,001 1,721 25313 399,279 -
RZB-—%£+ZB=+-H Asat31December 2011
A Cost 116,715 35 435,490 2,251 4,669 25,313 584,473 30
ZEMERAERS Accumulated depreciation
and impairment loss (24,136) (35) (156,825) (1,250) (2,948) - (185,194) (30)
BEEE Net carrying amount 92,579 - 278,665 1,001 1,721 25,313 399,279 -
RERE Net carrying amount
W-E--%-F-H As at 1 January 2012 92,579 - 278,665 1,001 1,721 25,313 399,279 -
1 Additions 3,720 - 5,616 967 156 107,945 118,404 9
HE Disposals - = - (49) = - (44) -
& Written off - - - - (174) - (174) -
e Depreciation (6,646) - (36,772) (248) (537) - (44,203) (1)
B Transfer 13,948 - 74,463 - - (88,411) - -
RZE-ZF+ZAZ+-H Asat31December 2012 103,601 - 321,972 1,676 1,166 44,847 473,262 8
RZB-Z£+ZB=+-H Asat31December 2012
A Cost 134,383 35 515,569 2,742 2,035 44,847 699,611 39
ZENERAEER Accumulated depreciation
and impairment loss (30,782) (35) (193,597) (1,066) (869) - (226,349) (31)
REFE Net carrying amount 103,601 - 321,972 1,676 1,166 44,847 473,262 8

AEEZBFURRTREORE 2HEHE

Bt o

The Group’s buildings are situated on leasehold lands under

medium-term in the PRC.

KiE TR AR A7 TIANDE CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED



I5.

B B FTM &F Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F+=-A=+—HI% For the year ended 31 December 2012

BN IHEERE -LAEE I5. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS — GROUP
—E——fF —T——F
2012 2011
ARET T ARET T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
Kn—H—H At 1 January 56,587 57,880
TEAS £ tth FE & FR0E # 5 Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments (1,293) (1,293)
R+=—A=+—H At 31 December 55,294 56,587

BNEREr > (BE R #ETETE 338 Current portion (included in prepayments

Ko At R YR IE) and other receivables) (1,293) (1,293)
JEBNEAER 2 Non-current portion 54,001 55,294

AREE 2 AN T HEFRIBTIZNPE 2 H
HHEERS -

AEBEEIFEAREGHEITREREEZE
RzBMALHEERBZRAENAARE
30,278,000 (ZZE——F : AR
23,482,0007T) (HMf&E23) °

REYE-AEE 6.

RAMBIARPREE 2 ZEESHHAmT

The Group’s prepaid land lease payments are held under medium-
term in the PRC.

The carrying amount of the Group’s prepaid land lease payments
pledged as securities for the Group’s banking facilities and
borrowings amounted to approximately RMB30,278,000 (2011:
RMB23,482,000) (note 23).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — GROUP

Changes to the carrying amounts presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position can be summarised as follows:

—E-=fF —T——F

2012 2011

AR T ARET T

RMB’000 RMB’000

R—HA—H At 1 January 12,440 11,710
MY - BEREZBEEA Transferred from property,

(M5E14) plant and equipment (note 14) - 500

WEYEEMILE Revaluation gain on investment properties 590 230

R+=—A=+—H At 31 December 13,030 12,440

REMER -_T——FRh_F——F+_A
=+— BRI EMITKAITHER
RARLR (FEETHFEZUERELUY
K2R ETER - HEDRUE KRR
BRI Z R 2B SR AEt -
EfEECEAFEIRSER

AREBZREYELNIZTHEERSEZ2H
EHEE L -

Investment properties were revalued as at 31 December 2012 and
2011 by RHL Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of chartered
surveyors, who has the recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued. The valuation was arrived at by
reference to the recent market transactions for similar properties
in the same location and condition. The revaluation gain was
recognised in profit or loss for the year.

The Group's investment properties are situated on leasehold lands
under medium-term in the PRC.
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17.
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R—BEHEBE B oA U 17. INTEREST INJAMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINTLY

—EBHEEHERERE CONTROLLED ENTITY
rE Group
—2-=fF —E——F
2012 2011
AR®T T AR¥EFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
R EERE Share of net assets 48,511 -
HE-Z——F+-A=+—HI ' x&H Particulars of the jointly controlled entity of the Group as at 31
THIMEEEHER o FBOT December 2012 are as follows:
BRTLE/
EHGER
EMERL/ RAzEE
RIREELY Nominal value of
Place of incorporation/ issued ordinary/ KARELEE 2B
&R establishment paid-up registered  Percentage of equity attributable TEEH
Name and operations share capital to the Company Principal activities
E# FEH
Direct Indirect
BRRAERERAR Ek 1007 5% - RABK
Dekel Investment Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$100 Investment holding
AR R HERAE HENEBELE 14,051,190% 75 - 55%  ME - BEREE-BIXA
(IMERELE]) BRIEER
Weifang Dekel Innovative Materials The PRC, wholly-owned foreign USD14,051,190 Research and development,
Co., Ltd enterprise ("WOFE") manufacture and sales of a type of
specialty chemical for industrial use
RZZE——FRNA=+H ARREESH On 30 June 2011, the Company entered into the JV Agreement
BERAR(NESEE]) TG EMEAK with Henkel Hong Kong Holding Limited (“Henkel Hong Kong")
ViEEREERAER AR ([EeRE]) - BB to form Dekel Investment Holdings Limted (”Dekel Investment”),
ZRZE-ZFARAZBRPEILRE MY which then established a WOFE, Weifang Dekel Innovative Materials
MK — BN B BN ES I Co., Ltd ("Weifang Dekel”) in Weifang City, Shandong Province,
BAERAT (T ES]) - AhEaxEXE the PRC on 2 June 2012. The principal activity of Weifang Dekel is
BIEEMRMALE  REREE—BEILE to engage in the research and development, manufacture and sales
ANRIEEEm - of a type of specialty chemical for industrial use.
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7. INTEREST IN/AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITY (Continued)

AEEETHRZESERBNMBEENNES Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s jointly
HIEAT - controlled entity is set out below:
—E—_—F —E——%
2012 2011
AR¥T T ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
EmENEE Non-current assets 8,042 -
MENE B Current assets 87,188 -
95,230 -
mEBE Current liabilities 7,028 -
7,028 -
BETE Net assets 88,202 -
L& EFE Share of net assets 48,511 -
W2 BRRERE Total revenue from the date of
H B &9 A8 U A incorporation to reporting date = -
W BRRERE Total profit for the period from the date of
H BRI A9 42 F1 incorporation to the reporting date 678 -
e — R R G FEE 2% A Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity 373 -

R-E——"F+-_A=+—H BR—MEHX
RZEHIEEFTAREER  REREAR—F

REE o

RZE——F+=-A=+—H

BABXARE -

P KEEHE

RARERH > AEBEREXRZEHER

As at 31 December 2012, the amount due from a jointly controlled
entity was unsecured, interest free and repayable within one year.

The jointly controlled entity had no contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2012.

The Group’'s share of the jointly controlled entity's capital

BAAENT - commitments at the reporting date is as follows:
—E-—F —F——%F
2012 2011
AR®BT R ARMTF T
RMB’000 RMB'000

SEESKEES 2 Contracted but not provided for

W BB REE property, plant and equipment 455 -
455 -
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18. RLERE —AES 18. DEFERRED TAX — GROUP
NEBEBAUTTIEREHRBEE, (8 The following is the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised
&) : by the Group:

E4H
Arising from
RERBX
Pre- REWHE
operating Investment &t
expenses properties Total
AR¥T R AREFR AR TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R-F——%—H—H At 1 January 2011 126 (2,255) (2,129)
SRl s Charge to other
comprehensive income - (98) (98)
BEZR (F5E9) Charge to profit or loss (note 9) (63) (110) (173)
RZE——F+ZF=+—H At 31 December 2011 and
MZ_E——-%—F—H 1 January 2012 63 (2,463) (2,400)
BiEmik (FI9) Charge to profit or loss (note 9) (63) (200) (263)
RZE——F+=-R=+—H At 31 December 2012 - (2,663) (2,663)
AN RBtira MR RTE 2 R IE 45 The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for the
BRDAT consolidated statement of financial position purposes:
—E2-CF —E——%F
2012 2011
ARET T ARBFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
EERIBE E Deferred tax assets - 63
RIEFIBEE Deferred tax liabilities (2,663) (2,463)
(2,663) (2,400)
RmEBRE  REEHRGAINREREREA At the reporting date, the Group has deductible temporary
R#9,956,000L (=T ——F : AR differences of RMB9,956,000 (2011:RMB12,269,000) for offset
12,269,0007T) LA 85 1§ 2% A1 - R against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
KR & MRS A TEOR - W & B A in respect of RMB9,956,000 (2011:RMB12,269,000) due to the
R#9,956,000c (T ——F : AR unpredictability of future profit streams.
12,269,0007T) HER IR TETRIBE E ©
BARARATIEFIBATRKRBEX - 5T Deferred tax liabilities of approximately RMB48,243,000 (2011:
AR B A BT A B AR BE B 2 FE A TR AR RMB32,443,000) have not been established for the withholding
BEAEBUYUBEEREAGHN AR tax that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain
48,243,000 (= ——F : ARK subsidiaries in the PRC because the Company controls the dividend
32,443,0007T) MR R G - IR KT policy of these subsidiaries and it is not probable that the temporary
EERBZRERESE N ——_F1+_H differences will reverse in the foreseeable future. Such unremitted
=+—H  RHBARMNIRERREDZF earnings for investment in subsidiaries totalled approximately
BET AR/ AR #482,430,0007T (ZE —— RMB482,430,000 as at 31 December 2012 (2011:
F : AR%324,430,0007T) ° RMB324,430,000).
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FE-X&B 19. INVENTORIES — GROUP

—E——fF —E——F
2012 2011
AR¥ T AR¥TF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
JRH Raw materials 28,222 40,379
KM Work in progress 6,599 6,750
B i Finished goods 23,993 38,400
58,814 85,529

BESRNERBNRE -AES 20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE — GROUP
—E-—F —F——%F
2012 2011
AR¥T T ARBF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
Z 5 R Trade receivables 103,354 100,304
FEW =& Bills receivable 107,312 110,044
210,666 210,348
rEBGRTESIEPZEEH BN T—E The Group allows a credit period normally ranging from one month
A i/\ﬂﬂ (ZE2—F N F—E@EAER to six months to its trade customers (2011: ranging from one month
B A7) TE - BRER AP E ZRITHEN to six months). The bills receivable are non-interest bearing bank

ES E"EWI#&E‘EEIHH M RIE 2 Rk
RANERAA - BUBRFPHEAF ZEER
B AEEPNERBRREREFEZEZ

acceptance bills and aged within six months at both reporting dates.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue

ZEH o BREe TR BEIRR - balances are reviewed regularly by management.

REmERAH  EZRKERERERIZERE The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivable at the reporting

HEIFMEZ BREE AT A0 T date, based on the invoice date, is stated as follows:
—E-=fF —T——F
2012 2011
AR¥T T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
0£90H 0 to 90 days 177,754 179,374
91£180H 91 to 180 days 31,167 28,647
1812365H 181 to 365 days 1,622 2,259
tBiB365H Over 365 days 123 68
210,666 210,348
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200 B2RINERE
(%)
N-ZE——F+-A=+—08 ZE5EKE
HAR®6,710,000 (ZF——F : AR®
10,917,0007T) B @ EERIEH B E - BRIk
DAMEER  EFRAELEEHNEREE R
WEEXNEE B ZEFENRETRE - H
BB ZEL RFTRBEER - BRERER
B B REEARERE B S EKERIZE
HHFTEZBREE DTN T

Rig—K%E

20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE — GROUP
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2012, trade receivable of approximately
RMB6,710,000 (2011: RMB10,917,000) were past due but not
impaired. Based on the past experience, the Directors are of the opinion
that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the amounts are still considered recoverable. The ageing analysis
of these trade receivable that were past due as at the reporting date
but not impaired, based on the due date, is as follows:

—E-CF —E——F

2012 2011

AR®T T ARBFTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

2#@H1%290H 1 to 90 days past due 4,352 10,558
BiEEI912180H 91 to 180 days past due 1,793 122
T iBEI181E365H 181 to 365 days past due 565 237
6,710 10,917

RZE——F+-_A=1+—8  BSENKE
T e U =95 49 A R #5203,956,0007T (ZZ—
—fF : AR¥199,431,0007T) WARBE - IR
KERE - ZEEHEREREREERES
ZREATRAEANEFEH  MZERF®
MNP BB A MR o

EBHEREREZESBREERRZRRE
TRABENEFBR MREEFEAKE
MEERERY - RIBAENEELE - &
BEERREREERLBSEAEHARETER
R ER 28 E - F i BARZE & RET
RORME R - KB EL B HERER
BZEZREESATAERR -

B 5 FE M0 0E R R SR B R T
SH1E -

As at 31 December 2012, trade and bills receivable of approximately
RMB203,956,000 (2011: RMB199,431,000) were neither past due
nor impaired. These related to a large number of diversified
customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a
large number of diversified customers that had a good track record
of credit with the Group. Based on past credit record, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered to be fully recoverable.
The Group did not hold any collateral in respect of trade receivables
past due but not impaired.

The carrying amounts of the trade and bills receivable are
denominated in the following currencies:

—EB——fF —E——F

2012 2011

AR®BT T AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR RMB 171,051 164,340
ESUESHD) United States Dollars (“US$") 39,615 46,008
210,666 210,348

100 Kb TR BEBR A 7 TIANDE CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED



21.

22.

B B FTM &F Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F+=-F=+—HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

BERROERRBORRER/H 21

—AEERANT
R-E——F+-_A=+—H KE@E2D
BRIRITHERDEEANSEERIRITHE
ZERMERTRIT2ERFIFE22) - T
WARBGE EEFMEHOS50%E
3.10% - R ——F+-_A=+—H 1
E|EIEBRITF -

AEEZ BEMRITERLIBITHIE S &%
LARBEE - ©98 AR47,000,0007T
(ZZT——4F : AR#¥72,940,0007T) - AR
B SR A INERS - BIET B Z SNEE HIHES)
MAEE - BB RAEEEAR T HIE -

EEMRITERLRTER AR ZREE
RIATEBEHE -

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK AND
CASH BALANCES — GROUP AND COMPANY

As at 31 December 2011, the Group's pledged bank deposits
represented deposits pledged to banks to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group (note 22). The deposits were in RMB and
carried interest rate ranging from 0.50% to 3.10% per annum.
There were no pledged bank deposits as at 31 December 2012.

The Group’s pledged bank deposits and bank and cash balances
amounted to approximately RMB47,000,000 (2011:
RMB72,940,000) were denominated in RMB. Conversion of RMB
into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sales and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

The carrying amounts of pledged bank deposits and bank and cash
balances are denominated in the following currencies:

rEE ¥ /NG

Group Company
—F--F —T—% ZB-=fF —TF
2012 2011 2012 2011
ARET T ARETT ARET R ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
BT HK$ 144 93 142 93
ETT us$ 2,818 4,256 1,048 1,982
AR RMB 47,000 72,940 6,332 8,709
49,962 77,289 7,522 10,784

BIRNE-—AEE 22. TRADE PAYABLES — GROUP

AEBEHRERG T Z2EERHA30E365H
ZE——4F :308365H) c NIREHE -
EoREMNBRZEZERBMEZREK ST
T

The Group was granted by its suppliers credit periods ranging from
30 to 365 days (2011: 30 to 365 days). The ageing analysis of
trade payables at the reporting date, based on the invoice date, is
as follows:

—B-CF —F——F

2012 2011

AR®T T ARBFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

0£90H 0 to 90 days 15,865 36,914
91£180H 91 to 180 days 757 310
1812365H 181 to 365 days 480 414
tBi®365H Over 365 days 396 213
17,498 37,851

BHREMNEZEMERAREE - AR
BEHEREY  HESEMERIEmEREQF
BEE - DRERRE -

The carrying amounts of trade payables are denominated in RMB.
All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values of trade
payables are considered to be a reasonable approximation of their
fair values.
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BITER-AEE

REBEERBZAENBEEERS - T
TRERERGRZENERT - BERR

23. BANK BORROWINGS - GROUP

Based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements and ignoring the effect of any repayment on demand

TERNAT clause, the bank borrowings are repayable as follows:
—B-—fF —E——%F
2012 2011
AR® T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REBAE Current liabilities
R—FRNEEZRTEE Bank borrowings repayable within one year
(T EERERERER and do not contain a repayment on
(GED) demand clause (note i) = 15,000
R—FAEEZRITEE Bank borrowings repayable within one year
(T EIERERKEBER) and do not contain a repayment on
(B =TI demand clause (note ii) 22,000 12,000
R—FAEEZRITEE Bank borrowings repayable within one year
(BREREREEET and contain a repayment on
(G demand clause (note i) 35,000 43,000
57,000 70,000
FRBEME Non-current liabilities
A& = (i 5Eii) In the second year (note ii) 17,000 22,000
REZZFRFN In the third to fifth years, inclusive
(BIEEREMF) (i) (note ii) = 17,000
17,000 39,000
B3 - Notes:
() ZERITEEHARRNFBIMNERFE (i) These bank borrowings are guaranteed by the Company’s subsidiaries
R o in the PRC.
(i ZFHRITEER : (WAEEWEMN THH (i) These bank borrowings are (1) secured by the Group’s prepaid land

ERIEEEM (PIFE15);(2) AR R Y
BffEARRARATESER o BHEER

lease payments (note 15); (2) guaranteed by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC and Company’s Directors; and are repayable

E-FT—WUFABL -

ARERTER (BRAUREREENANE
B TR ER AR o SERBIRITEEL
EIRBSREEOGER -

FIARITEENEREYUAREE - 2
AR EMRITEBEZ ZEHFEMNENT5.17%
£853% (ZF——F :527%%7.63%) -
BMEAEBATHES RSN ERAR -

by instalments until 2014.

The interest-bearing bank borrowings, including the term loans
repayable on demand, are carried at amortised cost. None of the
non-current bank borrowings contains a repayment on demand
clause.

The carrying amounts of all bank borrowings are denominated in
RMB. Short-term and long-term bank borrowings are arranged at
floating interest rates ranged from 5.17% to 8.53% (2011: 5.27%
to 7.63%) per annum exposing the Group to cash flow interest
rate risks.
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24. DEFERRED INCOME — GROUP

REE R AEHBNEL - EREE The Group's deferred income represents a government grant
RERTHK EERETHERALBIEESR obtained for subsidising the construction of the production lines
Bl E R fHAL - and ancillary facilities for the manufacture of isobutylene,
polyisobuylene and chloroacetic acid.
BEREMNMEZ DT Analysed for reporting purpose as:
—B——fF —E——%
2012 2011
AR¥ T ARBTTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
nEBE (BEREEEN Current liabilities (included in accruals
AT BR SR % HL At FE < 5RIR) and other payables) 2,740 2,740
ERBAEE Non-current liabilities 13,191 15,931
15,931 18,671
B 25. SHARE CAPITAL
Amount
R 4= FTEx AR TR
Number of
shares HK$'000 RMB'000
ETE Authorised:
BREB.OETLE AR Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
RZE——F—HA—H" As at 1 January 2011 and
—“E——%+-A=+—8" 31 December 2011,
—E-ZH5-A-HK 1 January 2012 and
—E——"F#+-A=+—H 31 December 2012 100,000,000,000 1,000,000
BRITRAE Issued and fully paid:
BREB.0ETLE AR Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
R-_ZE——%—A—H As at 1 January 2011 421,248,000 4,212 4,216
10 B e (fi3E28) Exercise of share options (note 28) 2,191,000 22 18
BATHLR (M sta ke Mist26) Bonus issue of shares
(note a and note 26) 423,439,000 4,234 3,552
RZE——F+=-A=+—H "+  Asat 31 December 2011,
—F-—F-A—-8Ak 1 January 2012 and
—E-—F+-A=+—H 31 December 2012 846,878,000 8,468 7,786
MizEa Note a:
RZZE——FAHA  ARADRIETAR - A2 In May 2011, the Company issued 423,439,000 new shares to its existing

A)EE17423, 439 OOORRFTARAAE IR B IR - FIEE
HEEARBDIR=ZE——F=ZA=+=AK
:2**%35)% EHIJ%Z’“‘E&LK Bl
——FMALBEHE R

shareholders as a result of the bonus issue of shares of the Company,
details of which are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 22
March 2011 and 3 May 2011 and the Company’s circular dated 7 April
2011.
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B —AEBRART

A EH

AEBRFRBZAENFREDEGREERE
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26. RESERVES — GROUP AND COMPANY

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein

BRIR - are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
P/ /N Company
e
EHER  URGXH X ERRE
BABH ZRERE LERE Foreign
BA%E Merger relief Share-based Capital  currency  REREN  BERE
Share contributed payment contribution translation Retained  Proposed &t
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve profits  dividends Total
ARBTR ARETr ARETR ARETr AR¥Trn AR¥Trn AR%Tn ARET:R
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB’000
(3 @) (HH3E h) (it e) (M= f) (GEZ)!
(note a) (note h) (note e) (note f) (note g)
WZE——F—F—RA%% Balance at 1 January 2011 108,177 11,137 530 4,162 (36,037) 68,926 32,012 288,907
BATALIR(MIFE25) Bonus issue of shares (note 25) (3,552) - - - - - - (3,552)
ERRE (FEE12(0) Dividends paid (note 12(b)) - - - - - - (32,012) (32,012)
Eﬂgﬂﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ Issue of new shares upon exercise
BITHRR (3E28) of share options (note 28) 1,708 - (543) - - - - 1,165
RiELEEARNZ [ 2 Equity-settled share-based
Iﬁffﬁi payment expenses - - 13 1,007 - - - 1,020
ZE——E%JE?K%@HQ% 2011 proposed final dividend
(fi3%12(a) (note 12(a)) - - - - - (20,760) 20,760 -
ERER Loss for the year - - - - - (720) - (720)
H2ERY Other comprehensive expense - - - - (8,400) - - (8,400)
W=E——F+-F=1+—F Balance at 31 December 2011
&:gflgfﬂ —f and 1 January 2012 106,333 111,137 - 5,169 (44,437) 47,446 20,760 246,408
BREE (HEE12(0) Dividend paid (note 12(b)) - - - - - - (20,760) (20,760)
Hﬂ tMV\HX SN Equity-settled share-based
Iﬁﬁﬂi payment expenses - - - 162 - - - 162
-z 7@5%/}&?@% 8 2012 proposed final dividend
Mmz (note 12(a) - - - - - (25,750) 25,750 -
ERER Loss for the year - - - - - (8,073) = (8,073)
HpzENE Qther comprehensive income - - - - 3,940 - - 3,940
B8 (M26() Transfer (note 26(f) - - - (5,331) - 5,331 - -
R-E--F Balance at
TZRA=t+—R&H 31 December 2012 106,333 111,137 - - (40,497) 18,954 25,750 221,677
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(e)

IR 105 B

RIEFASHERRA - AARKD
BRAZESAHRDIKTAREES
A ERRERZEDIRRE BHEK - K
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RRIZER °

Y5l e

Bl BEREARER _ZTNF
ETZEAMBBTENBEARZE
BRAEARBRBREZEMBE LT
ZHIEMBET 2 ARBR D EERD
EH8 -

BHARE
ARBRFBEKZZHMB LB ZER
MARTE > ZEWBLARASFER
BAASREENZETES L ERMK
NER  BEZEHREIBEENBA
AFEMEARZ50% B - E—RIFR
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BBBIEEAE A GEME A RIEFRH
EFEAY B REMEARE - FHEH 2
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26. RESERVES — GROUP AND COMPANY (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds
in the share premium account of the Company are
distributable to the owners of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position
to pay off its debt as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Special reserve

Special reserve represents the difference between the paid
in capital of the PRC subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
Group reorganisation in 2004 and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange for the control in these
subsidiaries.

Surplus reserve fund

Articles of association of the Company’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC require the appropriation of certain
percentage of their profits after income tax each year to the
surplus reserve fund until the balance reaches 50% of their
registered capitals. In normal circumstances, the surplus
reserve fund shall only be used for making up losses,
capitalisation into registered capital and expansion of the
subsidiaries’ production and operation. For the capitalisation
of surplus reserve fund into registered capital, the remaining
amount of such reserve shall not be less than 25% of the
registered capital.

Public welfare fund

Pursuant to relevant regulations before the enactment of
Company Law of the PRC (revised in 2005) on 1 January
2006, the Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC shall
make allocation from their profits after income tax at the
rate of 5% to 10% to the public welfare fund. The public
welfare fund can only be utilised on capital nature items for
collective welfare of employees. The public welfare fund is
not distributable other than in liquidation.

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents equity-settled
share-based payments to certain employees and a supplier
of the Group recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for equity-settled share-based payments in
note 3(t).
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(f)

(9)

(h)

EXHERE

R-ZZLF  ARBZ&RBZERRA
ARTFARA—MEI-—FHBZA
RAERR - BEMEIEMISRINGE F
- FIERRBZ A FEZ2ER D
REHERZAFEMEE @ LAE
BORIR B B HIS I RO S E AR D
S ZREMS - X RKEEENE
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T—B EFER3R FEREBEHNT
T BRELMRE  UREBEART
B ERAAE137RRB LB
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SN EE KR

SNETE SRS BRI EINEER 2/
BREMELEZMBELZE - EX
FBIRIEM E3EME S ERREE -

B RBBARE
AVERAARBIFREAEER =
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B 2 R E S B T 4T 2 AN 2 AR A
EER M ZH -

26. RESERVES — GROUP AND COMPANY (Continued)

()

(9)

(h)

Capital contribution reserve

In 2007, certain number of the Company’s shares were
granted to an employee of the Company by the Company’s
ultimate holding company, with non-market performance
vesting conditions, with its fair value of services received
determined by reference to the fair value of shares granted
at the grant date, expenses on a straight-line method over
the vesting period as equity settled share based payment
expenses, with a corresponding increase in capital
contribution reserve. At 31 December 2012, the Directors
considered that this reserve was no longer necessary upon
the completion of vesting period and resolved that the total
carrying amount of this reserve be transferred to the retained
profits of the Company in accordance with article 137 of the
Company'’s articles of association.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set out in
note 3(e).

Merger relief contributed surplus

Merger relief contributed surplus represents the difference
between the net assets value of the PRC subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the Group reorganisation in 2004 and the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
for the control in these subsidiaries.

REBAIEREENME/AST 27. INTERESTS IN AND DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES —
RE-ANT COMPANY
=2—=% —F—F
2012 2011
ARBT T ARMF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
ELMIRE - KA Unlisted investments, at cost 3 3
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RWEAIRERRENNELT

RE-ARQQ (&

BE_T——Fk_T—F+-_RA=+—
BRI AEERBRGZFBEOT

INTERESTS IN AND DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES —
COMPANY (Continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 December
2012 and 2011 are as follows:

BERTER/
BHGER
gAY/ RAzEE
RIREEHY Nominal value of
Place of incorporation/ issued ordinary/ FAREEER AL
8 establishment paid-up registered  Percentage of equity attributable EFE£#K
Name and operations share capital to the Company Principal activities
E& *ER
Direct Indirect
BERERARAF B 131 100% - REER
Great Growth Holdings Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 Investment holding
BRERARAR ik 131 100% - REER
Great Spirit Holdings Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 Investment holding
BEERERLF B 131 100% - REER
Great Promise Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Investment holding
BEERERAR RERRES 2685 7T - 100%  REER
Smartcham Holdings Limited The BVI US$268 Investment holding
BACZERAA RERREE 125157 - 100%  REER
Smartpoint Enterprises Limited The BVI US$1,251 Investment holding
BRERERAF RERRESE ATIET - 100%  REER
Techsmart Holdings Limited The BVI us$477 Investment holding
BIREEERAT mENBHBALE 600,000% 7T - 100% & REREERALIER
Weifang Common Chem Co., Ltd. The PRC, WOFE US$600,000 Research and development,
manufacture and sales of
fine chemical products
FBEMIBRAR mENEBELE ARH5,000,0007T - 100% W& HERASHEALIER
Shanghai Dehong Chemical The PRC, WOFE RMB5,000,000 Research and development, selling
Company Limited and distribution of fine chemical
products
EHRERRARRA mE - HEBELE 5,200,000% 7T - 100% & REREERALIER
Weifang Parasia Chem Co., Ltd The PRC, WOFE US$5,200,000 Research and development,
manufacture and sales of fine
chemical products
A EERRCIBRAR RENEEELE 10,800,000% 7 - 100% & SEREERALIER
Weifang Binhai Petro-Chem Co., Ltd The PRC, WOFE US$10,800,000 Research and development,

mReBIERT  BHBERENRRERE

= e

e

RAFER - BEERHBARETERE

manufacture and sales of fine
chemical products

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

demand.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end

of the year.

— T — — &4 4 ANNUAL REPORT 2012 107



B MR 5F Notes to the Financial Statements

HE—ZT—
28. DIRIDSZI=RE
IR RE A R R AT 2

108

ARBRZZEENF+ AW BHAERRA—
TEMEARERT B ([RERRIERTE)) - BERER
BB A EE 2 KINMELERMZ S - B3
BE  AEEEMKEARNBERAR LA
BiRRE - HEY B REIFEESHE
ZHE A ARER BRI SAAA o B
FHEB T RF T ANBRAR - B RE
+F  REBREFTIIRLE RS
40,000,00017 fE i - Al T B35 B AERR
B 5 %40,000,0000% I 17 °

RZZBEENF-A—H  AARIRERAT
ZEREERAERES MEEERD
4,000,000/ IR IE - RBE-_T——F+
“A=Z+—HIEFE  2,191,00010 1T E
£0.64BTL 2 BIRERFANITE - RZE—
—ER_E-—F+_A=+—HBIEELK
1T 2 BEARHE -

RERARRITE 2 BREFENT

—#+=H=+—HI1-%E For the year ended 31 December 2012

28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share option scheme

The Company has approved and adopted a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme"”) on 4 October 2006 for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to the Directors, eligible
employees, suppliers, customers, any shareholder of each member
of the Group or associated company or any of their respective
associates, and advisers or consultants of the Group who contribute
to the success of the Group. The Share Option Scheme has become
effective for a period of 10 years commencing on 4 October 2006
and up to 40,000,000 options entitling the holders thereof to
subscribe for up to 40,000,000 shares may be granted under the
Share Option Scheme.

On 1 February 2008, the Company granted 4,000,000 share
options to the eligible employees and a supplier under the Share
Option Scheme of the Company. During the year ended 31
December 2011, 2,191,000 of share options at the exercise price
of HK$0.64 per share were exercised, there was no outstanding
share option as at 31 December 2011 and 2012.

Details of the share options outstanding during the year are as
follows:

—E-C-F —E2——F
2012 2011
e JiliE-R e
TEE 1018
BREHR Weighted EIREHE Weighted
Number of average Number of average
share option exercise price share option  exercise price
BT BT
HK$ HK$
REH] Outstanding at the beginning of
R AR AT E the year - - 2,291,000 0.64
F R8I Forfeited during the year = = (100,000) 0.64
FRITHE Exercised during the year = = (2,191,000) 0.64
RERMARITE Outstanding at the end of the year = = - -
RERAITEE Exercisable at the end of the year = = - -

KiE TR AR A7 TIANDE CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED



29.

TEEMIR
REARBEESEERINAEHHE
RIBERE - BRREB IR AN RS
S - SOEREE B ITXRAERKE
BEM - ARBEEGEED HIEERES
LB - Bl KRR ARERER
ARHEZREARRERIREMNAIS biEH
MERELEREBRARRBEEES BT EN
ERREMNAS b - REMENRE IR
ARERRPEN—T-—F_A—+=H)
[EmNEEBITE  WAIRBEREER=F
EATTE - RBHERRARZTEE
RIB S & 108 P8t 2 11 R IGRIERE ©

REZBENRERNSREENSEAFE
RARRREFRBEERN  HENERE
EEGAWRaERAR -

BERDCHEENNSRAGVSRATE
BRARRMEFRBEAEARN HENERE
Tz:zE?\mm Jmi’%k,ﬁﬁ ©

REERE Y REBHRERENKR
23 ARUREENREHRAGERERA
FEBHE  AEENEMRERER
ERARERTER - WMRESE R
BARETEMAY  HENEE BER/K
IR S (F LA EREE -

TESRMIAERNFEDER —BABEER
A WM FE34()FTILEfERTE « FIR » A
TEE B ARYE6,990,0007T O 4 4& W s
KHPHER -

B B FTM &F Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F+=-A=+—HI% For the year ended 31 December 2012

29.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Pursuant to the JV Agreement entered between the Company and
Henkel Hong Kong, Dekel Investment was formed. Dekel
investment then established Weifang Dekel to engage in the
research and development, manufacture and sales of a type of
specialty chemical for industrial use. The Company and Henkel
Hong Kong are respectively granted call and put options which
entitled the Company to require Henkel Hong Kong to sell the
45% Henkel Hong Kong's interest in Dekel Investment, and entitled
Henkel Hong Kong to require the Company to purchase the 45%
Henkel Hong Kong’s interest in Dekel Investment. Either the call
or put options will be exercisable on the sixth anniversary upon
the effective date (i.e. 23 February 2012), and subsequently for
once every third year. The exercise price for the call and put options
was determined in accordance with the terms and conditions
contained in the JV agreement.

The financial asset that may become receivable under the call option
is initially recognised at fair value within non-current assets with a
corresponding charge directly to the consolidated income
statement.

The financial liability that may become payable under the put option
is initially recognised at fair value within non-current liabilities with
a corresponding charge directly to the consolidated income
statement.

The call option asset and put option liability shall be re-measured
at their fair values resulting from the change in the expected
performance of Dekel Investment at each reporting date, with any
resulting gain or loss recognised in the consolidated income
statement. In the event that the call option/put option lapses
unexercised, the corresponding asset/liability will be derecognised
with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The derivative financial instruments are stated at fair value by using
the Binomial Lattice Model, which has been measured as described
in note 34(v). During the year, fair value loss of RMB6,990,000
was recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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30. Z&iE 30. COMMITMENTS
rEE Group
REgsE BER - AEBZEENT - The Group’s commitments at the reporting date are as follows:
—B-=fF —ET——%
2012 2011
AR® T AREBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BRI B REE Contracted but not provided for
S E S Property, plant and equipment 16,906 4,885
Aa &R EE R Shareholder’s loans to a jointly controlled
Hxﬁﬁ (B EE) entity (note) 98,813 145,456
115,719 150,341
ERERRTA Authorised but not contracted for
W BENEE Property, plant and equipment 50,185 87,901
165,904 238,242
MisE © RIBA LS BAMEIGERRGME - RNRER Note: The Company agrees to make shareholder’s loans of
BIRARRIFIRFZESIRESS % RERE EURO11,880,000 (approximately RMB98,813,000) to Dekel
SIREEHRRER - ©5/511,880,000 Investment in accordance with 55% shareholding of the Company
BL T (#9A8 AR#98,813,0007T) ° in Dekel Investment, which is subject to the terms and conditions
set out in the JV Agreement.
P NN Company
R—E——FR-—_ZT——F+-F=+— The Company does not have any capital commitments as at 31
B ARQFYW ETAEAEIE o December 2012 and 2011.
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HE-_ZT——F+=-A=+—HI% For the year ended 31 December 2012

KREHSREREE 31. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENT AND

AEBEAEEA
R-ZE——F+-_A=+—8 " RBRETATH
HEEHE  AEE BEREREWGRE
FUOT

COMMITMENTS
Group - as lessor

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases as
follows:

—E——F —F——%F

2012 2011

AR®T T ARBF T

RMB’000 RMB'000

—F2ZN Within one year 773 456
REZZFRAFAN(BIFEEEMF) In the second to fifth year inclusive 1,720 88
FRFZIE After fifth year 33 -
2,526 544

EAREH E’J%&*éfﬂ QEFT %Eﬁﬂ,ié/a?%%

)ES'ZH?E?WEQ o
AARMEREHBEA
R-E-—FR-F——F+-A=t—

B AARYEEATARHEEEHERE
HE WK

AEBEAERBEA
R-ZE——F+-A=+—8  RBRETATH
HEEHE  AEBZHREREHAENRE
BR

Under operating lease arrangements of the Group, the leases are
negotiated for an average terms of one to six years. The terms of
the leases generally require the tenants to pay security deposits.

Company - as lessor

The Company does not have any minimum lease receipts under
non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December 2012 and
2011.

Group - as lessee

As at 31 December 2012, the total future minimum lease payments
by the Group under non-cancellable operating leases payable are
as follows:

—E-=fF —E——F

2012 2011

AR TR ARBF T

RMB’000 RMB'000

—F2ZN Within one year 243 499
RE—ZZERFR(BIEEEMT) In the second to fifth year inclusive 180 108
423 607

REHENREARERES THAIEME
e HEEARERTIHOR—E=ZFT
EF  MREPANESEE - LT EREEN

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the Group
for certain of its offices. Leases are negotiated for an average term
of one to three years and rentals are fixed over the lease terms
and do not include contingent rentals.

— T — —F %3 ANNUAL REPORT 2012 I



B MR 5F Notes to the Financial Statements
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3. KEHSRIRAIE (A) 31.

ARATERAEEA
R-E——F+_-A=+—08 BETIH
HEEHE  ARalz BEREHRENRE
BUOR

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENT AND
COMMITMENTS (Continued)
Company - as lessee

As at 31 December 2012, the total future minimum lease payments
by the Company under non-cancellable operating leases payable
are as follows:

—E--F —E——%F

2012 2011

AR®BTR AR¥EFTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

—F2ZA Within one year 63 302
REZZEFRFR(BEEEMT) In the second to fifth year inclusive = 63
63 365

REBENRIERRBRERREMENZ
He - ARMEAHERFERME - MNE
NHHEEEE YT BREEMSAES -

32. BEARS 32.

(@ FA AEEEBBITITLNTR

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the Company
for its office. Lease is negotiated for a term of two years and rental
is fixed over the lease terms and do not include contingent rental.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) During the year, the Group entered into the following

Z transactions with related parties:
—E——F —E——fF
2012 2011
ARBTR ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
7R A E (FTA¥TT  Rental expenses to a related company in
EEOREERER which all the executive Directors have
WAIAITHRERTZEN) B beneficial interests and can exercise
e significant influence 180 180
m— AR (BT Sale of goods to a related company in
EEHEERER which all the executive Directors have
WALATTREERZEN) beneficial interests and can exercise
HEEMm significant influence 474 313
M- EEEEFEFREUKEM  Rental income received from
e WA a jointly controlled entity 250 -
[y —fEREs A E (A Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
WITESHAER ER plant and equipment to a related
WAIAFTHRERFZEN) B company in which all the executive Directors
BEME BER have beneficial interests and can exercise
RIBOET 2 significant influence 18,000 -
by FEBBABZHSFBEHNTHR (b)  The remuneration of key management personnel are set out
FMIEE11 0 in note 11.
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33.

34.

&

FRERS

FA - REWME  BERRBABOARE
4,664,000TCHAKEE - B BIEE BN RN
R R AR A -

& Bl R B 32

AEEEHZERERE - THRER (B
REBRRENERR) - FERRNTE
R - AEEZEERREEEESHT
SRR ZEE - BRBEREAREHA
SEMBRRERBETE - AREBA
I EAL R BA XXM R B IR BR Mgl - T
B EFSEHETIZEEEemNMNETR
EEEBRNANE UM EHEEERER
Bl A SR

AEBAIRSEEBENMESSHMEE @ T
ABELEDE - AEBAAXZERNTH
AT SCE o A - BTE34(vI BB IR
M EREERABRME -

S R B

HRASEETEBRS - BEXRA
BB NETTRME - MASEEY
SN R o 7N 5% B3R B 3 A EL (B S
[ER 5 - BENREESIEINEL PR
R AEBERTIERIMNERR - A
EEEREFTERYDERINER

A
o0
ZN

)

o

RNZE——F+_A=+—8 " 0OA
REHABTRETLNEGE R LH
5% M A H b o] B E =4S TE - A
N5 B F N H) 5 ) R AR BB SR R & 38 0
SR # AR 1,590,000 (ZF —
—& : AR¥1,888,0000T) ' =ER
ERUETHENE 5 EUER T3
PE 5 Uezs B 18 -

BE-_T——F+-HA=1+—HBLLF
JEE A TS SRR P B BURE D AT 5%
HEREERE -

M=RER

AEBEEH 2 HEREHRARER SR
FEMEE - AEBEWARERERITE
BHENNERER - A - BEEES
ERNEXER  YEEERARER

B ERME @R -

(ii)

B B FTM &F Notes to the Financial Statements

22— —F+=F=+—HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

= —=

33.

34.

NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

Of the total additions of property, plant and equipment during
the year, approximately RMB4,664,000 was yet settled and included
under “Accruals and other payables”.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to financial risks: market risk (including
currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group's overall risk management focuses on unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance. The Group currently does
not have any written risk management policies and guidelines.
However, the Directors meet periodically and cooperate closely with
key management to analyse and formulate strategies to manage
and monitor financial risks.

The Group is not engaged in the trading of financial assets for
speculative purposes nor does it write options. The most significant
financial risks to which the Group is exposed are described below.
See also note 34(vi) for a summary of financial assets and liabilities
by category.

(i) Foreign currency risk

The Group has exposure to foreign currency risk as certain
of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated in HK$ and US$. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of other
foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group
will monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

As at 31 December 2012, if the RMB had weakened/
strengthened 5% against HK$ and US$ with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s profit for the year and
retained profits would have been approximately
RMB1,590,000 (2011: RMB1,888,000) higher/lower, arising
mainly as a result of the foreign exchange gain/loss on trade
receivables denominated in US$.

The sensitivity analysis included in the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011 had been prepared
on the same basis.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk for changes in
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s floating interest
rate borrowings. The Group has not used any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. However,
management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

(ii)
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4. TRHEARERE (B2)

114

(i) FEEE (F)

BRED

KR B 5% I 4 7T 8 1158 ) % 2 8
+/-05% (=T ——%F : +/- 0.5%) BY&
RIS - 3B T LA B A
FiaeMAEREEALE  Fif
R TR E RS TR -

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s
profit for the year and retained profits to a possible change
in interest rates of +/- 0.5% (2011: +/- 0.5%), with effect
from the beginning of the year. The calculations are based
on the Group’s financial assets and liabilities held at the
reporting date. All other variables are held constant.

REE AN
Group Company
FEBHNRRERZF FEBERREETN

Profit for the year
and retained profits

Loss for the year
and retained profits

ARMT T ARMT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
+0.5% -0.5% +0.5% -0.5%
—EF—=F 31 December 2012
+=ZA=+—H (76) 76 46 (46)
—F——%F 31 December 2011
+ZA=+—H (101) 101 70 (70)

RIS B ATREOBE RS - BT
HEEBHHEERRBAREER ¥
T 75 B TR B P 50 R A+ — {8 A
HR9# T2 7T B B A (RO RE A -

BHE _ ZT—F+_A=+—HIHF
S 181 75 R 3R P8 B U D AT 0 IR
HEREERFE -

The assumed changes in interest rates are considered to be

reasonably possible based on observation of current market
conditions and represents the management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rate over the next
twelve months period.

The sensitivity analysis included in the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011 had been prepared
on the same basis.
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4. TRHAREE (2)

(iii)

(iv)

EERR

SR KRB IR R IRTT IR S 45
7 BHENE  BREEREME
WHIAERREE  HERANKEA
FEMEEARNRAEERR - R
TRReEHNEERRER - RE
EHEFHTHEEREEFNR -

AEECDHERE - AERAARE
ERREZETPIHES M

AEBUWESANEESETRR 5
BERSBEZETEREFH - A
M BENAEMTIEATE  (HE
E-E——F+-_A=+—HIES
FEUBEIN62% (B ——4 : 54%) ©
AREREEERAR  EREBHS
BUBMERMEZREEBESE M
EEREARPIEMERNOEER

ik Red

EEERANERRE AEEFER
REmEEBRARTHNRE LIRS
EFEER  ERAKELEMRNE
T URFERERERBNTE -
FTRARTEHERBANERNRS R
ENEIHNSMEERI YN R
BEERAES

HRAEENEHRITEETHARE
EAERTHENREARBRERSF
T EFRR it RAKEBRA
AOBREREMARMBERE -
SERARNNEEES - RAEN
BRIFA® - REBKBERITEREER
HRBESMIENRR -

B B FTM &F Notes to the Financial Statements
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the bank and cash balances and
trade, bills and other receivables included in the consolidated
statement of financial position represented the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to the Group’s
financial assets. The credit risk on bank and cash balances is
limited because the counterparties have high credit ratings.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made
to customers with an appropriate credit history.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk with
exposure spread over a number of customers and
counterparties. However, the geographical location of
customers is mainly in the PRC which accounted for 62%
(2011: 54%) of the trade receivables as at 31 December
2012. In order to minimise the credit risk, management will
endeavor to build an extensive customer base that spread
over the world, which can minimise the credit risk by
geographical location.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and
liabilities.

As the Group has short term bank borrowings which could
be renewed on an annual basis at the discretion of the Group
within limit approved by banks, the Directors are of the
opinion that, taking into account the presently available
facilities and internal financial resources of the Group, the
Group has sufficient working capital for its present
requirements. The Group relies on bank borrowings as a
significant source of liquidity.
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4. TRRRER (&)
(iv) ZRBEHERRE (&)
T & B A KRB 2D 17 8 3

116

TESRARIEEN

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued)
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the non-

derivative financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments:

=@EAR =f@RZ
REER -ER ABREHE
Within Between -ZHER Total REE
3 months or 3 months Between undiscounted Carrying
on demand to1year  1to5years amount amount
ARBTR AR¥Trn AR%®Tn ARBTR AR%ETx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
bS] Group
—ET--F 2012
BHEMNE Trade payables, accruals
ERAREERR and other payables
Hib MR 56,762 16,802 - 73,564 73,564
BITIRE Bank borrowings 7,145 53,672 17,296 78,113 74,000
G Total 63,907 70,474 17,296 151,677 147,564
—T——F 2011
ZHEMNE Trade payables, accruals
JER AR BRF K and other payables
HiERRIE 63,522 18,729 - 82,251 82,251
BITIEE Bank borrowings 17,626 57,441 41,211 116,278 109,000
EH) Total 81,148 76,170 41,211 198,529 191,251
LN Company
—E-—F 2012
HiERFRIE Other payables 289 450 - 739 739
CH Total 289 450 - 739 739
—T——F 2011
HiERRIE Other payables 381 122 - 503 503
CH Total 381 122 - 503 503

KiE TR AR A7 TIANDE CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED



4. TRHAREE (2)

(v)

EGARBRRERPRINA
FEHE
ATHRRBBEAFEIEN SR TA
B0 8 Bk T ST

F—MA: HREEXBEELED
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B B FTM &F Notes to the Financial Statements
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(v) Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments carried at fair value by level of fair value hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within the financial liability
is categorised in its entirely based on the lowest level of input
that is significant to the fair value measurement.

AEERARDT Group and Company
E— A EZHA E=4A B
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
M5 ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
—E-F 31 December 2012
+=ZA=+—"H
BE: Liabilities:
BAFERA Financial liabilities
BEHE/MERE  atfair value through
profit or loss
— TE4®I A - derivative financial
instruments 29 - - 6,990 6,990
- - 6,990 6,990
—E——F 31 December 2011
+=ZA=+—"H
BE: Liabilities:
BRFEFA Financial liabilities
BREHEMAM[E  atfair value through
profit or loss
TEE@IT A - derivative financial
instruments 29 - - - -
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34 TRRRER (&) 34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(v) EREMERRRPEIND (v) Fair value measurements recognised in the
FEFTE (&) consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)

SRABHYEAE=MRA - FHY The financial liabilities classified in Level 3 use valuation
TETEB'ZTTIJHETF JE LA AT BR AR T S B techniques based on significant inputs that are not based on
BHMERBAMBE - HEBHNESBTAE observable market data. The financial instruments within this
BRI R SRR M a8 0T ¢ level are reconciled from opening to closing balances as

follows:
—B-=fF —ET——%
2012 2011
AR® T AREBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
PTESBARE Derivative financial liabilities
m—H—H At 1 January = -
PTHESBMIAN Fair value loss on derivative
NFEEE financial instruments 6,990 -
W+=-—A=+—8 At 31 December 6,990 -
ERERALEEES ARER LS There have been no transfers into or out of Level 3 in the
=R e reporting period.
FATEERIANRAFEEEA During the year, fair value loss on derivative financial
R #6,990,0007T B 4R & W za K R instruments of RMB6,990,000 was recognised in the
e consolidated income statement.
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

ERREMEERBEDHIR

TE——FRZE——FF+ZA=+
—HWEREENIEU TSI - ERE
BeMTANERNAFEERN
£ B2HEME3()E3(m)EEREE o

category

(vi) Summary of financial assets and liabilities by

The carrying amounts of the financial assets and liabilities
recognised as at 31 December 2011 and 2012 may also be
categorised as follows. See notes 3(j) and 3(m) for
explanations about how the category of financial instruments
affects their subsequent measurement.

rEE RKAF
Group Company
—2-=F —F—F Z=B-=F —ZT-F
2012 2011 2012 2011
ARET T ARETT ARET R ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
SRMEE Financial assets
B NEWFRIE © Loans and receivables:
- B RUER — Trade receivables 103,354 100,304 = -
- BWRER - Bills receivable 107,312 110,044 = -
— Hin W RIE — Other receivables 28,620 14,284 258 260
— DHIFEITHEH - Pledged bank deposits - 13,400 - -
— BT RIFE 4% - Bank and cash balances 49,962 63,889 7,522 10,784
— [EYPI B A RIFIE - Amounts due from subsidiaries = - 171,940 187,351
— MR E - Dividend receivables = - 9,048 56,302
— Y —FER - Amount due from a jointly
THIEENIE controlled entity 443 - = -
289,691 301,921 188,768 254,697
cHERE Financial liabilities
BRAFERA Financial liabilities at fair value
BEHEmMAM/’:  through profit or loss:
- {TEemTH — Derivative financial instruments 6,990 - 6,990 -
REHEEANEHEE  Financial liabilities measured
CRBE: at amortised cost:
- BORAE — Trade payables 17,498 37,851 = -
— ERARRMERF R - Accruals and other payables
Hofth JE T 5RIE 56,067 44,400 739 503
— RITEE — Bank borrowings 74,000 109,000 = -
154,555 191,251 7,729 503
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35.
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NFERE - LR AERBRKFRERE
MHEEE - (M ABCR T RIEB O 5
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35.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s capital management objectives are to ensure the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to provide an
adequate return to shareholders by pricing goods commensurately
with the level of risk.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristic of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce
debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as set out in the table below.

The net debt-to-equity ratio at the reporting date was as follows:

KEE
Group
—E—_fF —E——%F
2012 2011
AR¥ T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
BE Borrowings
— nE — Current 57,000 70,000
— ARG — Non-current 17,000 39,000
B RITRIBEEHRK Less: Bank and cash balances and
DR ITIE R pledged bank deposits (49,962) (77,2809)
B FE Net debt 24,038 31,711
T AaRE Total equity 767,791 629,671
BEKERLE Net debt-to-equity ratio 3.13% 5.04%
K= TR AR A 7 TIANDE CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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